
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Wednesday - January 10, 2018

2:00 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1, 2 & 3



I. Call to Order  Barbara
Sowada

Minutes for November 28 2017 Special Joint Meeting with General
Medical Staff.docx - Page 4
 

  

II. Minutes For Approval Barbara
Sowada

VII. Old Business  Barbara
Sowada

A. Building & Grounds Committee  Taylor Jones

1. Capital Expenditure For Approval Taylor Jones

Capital Expenditure Request FY18_12.pdf - Page 17
 

  

2. Narratives - Pages 33, 55 & 72  Tami Love,
Chief
Financial
Officer

3. Bad Debt
Final numbers distributed near or on meeting date.

For Approval Ron Cheese,
Patient
Financial
Services
Director

4. Investment Recommendation - Page 85 For Approval Tami Love

C. Finance and Audit Committee  Taylor Jones

meeting book - tuesday - december 19, 2017 building & grounds
committee meeting.pdf - Page 13
 

  

B. Foundation Board  Marty Kelsey

X. Committee Reports  Barbara
Sowada

A. Pledge of Allegiance  Barbara
Sowada

Minutes for December 6 2017.docx - Page 7
 

  

III. Community Communication  Barbara
Sowada

IV. Medical Staff Report  Dr. David
Dansie,
Medical Staff
President

V. Executive Session (W.S. 16-4-405(a)(ii), (a)(iii))  Barbara
Sowada

VI. Credentials
Confidential information available for review in the Board Portal.

For Approval Barbara
Sowada

A. Mission and Vision Statements  Kristy NIelson,
Chief Nursing
Officer

VIII. New Business  Barbara
Sowada

IX. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene
Richardson,
Chief
Executive
Officer

Meeting Book - Wednesday - January 10, 2018 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 164



Quality Committee Summary Report December 2017.docx - Page
109
 

  

D. Quality Committee  Taylor Jones

meeting book - december 27, 2017 finance & audit committee
meeting.pdf - Page 24
The Committee did not meet in December.

  

12 20 17 Quality Minutes.doc - Page 113
 

  

Rocky Mountain Oncology Contract Check List Suzan
Campbell 2018.pdf - Page 115
 

  

Rocky Mountain Oncology Email Chain Kerry Downs.pdf -
Page 116
 

  

1. Rocky Mountain Oncology   

Supero Contract Check List Suzan Campbell 2018.pdf -
Page 126
 

  

2. Supero Credentialing Services   

Rocky Mountain Oncology.pdf - Page 119
 

  

A. Contract Consent Agenda For Approval Suzan
Campbell,
Chief Legal
Executive/General
Counsel

1. Jim Bridger Power Plant   

2. Grand Canyon University   

Jim Bridger Power Plant Occupational Medicine Services
2017.pdf - Page 132
 

  

B. Contracts Approved by CEO Since Last Board Meeting For Review  

Supero Credentialing Services.pdf - Page 127
 

  

XI. Contract Review  Barbara
Sowada

E. Joint Conference Committee (Strategic Plan Update)  Ed Tardoni &
Dr. David
Dansie

Grand Canyon University Agreement 2017.pdf - Page 157
 

  

XII. Community Communication  Barbara
Sowada

XIII. Good of the Order  Barbara
Sowada

XIV. Executive Session (if needed)  Barbara
Sowada

XV. Adjourn  Barbara
Sowada

Page 3 of 164



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AND GENERAL MEDICAL STAFF 

 

November 28, 2017 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session with 

the General Medical Staff on November 28, 2017, at 6:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, 

President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order, led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance, and 

confirmed that there was a quorum present. The following members were present: Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present: Mr. Irene Richardson, CEO; Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff President; Mr. 

John Kolb, Sweetwater County Board of County Commissioners. 

 

WELCOME MEDICAL STAFF 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board conducts a special meeting with the Medical Staff four times 

annually. He welcomed the Medical Staff and said the meetings are a good forum for exchange 

between the two groups. Mr. Mathey welcomed Dr. Israel Stewart, Internal Medicine.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF UPDATE 

 

Dr. Dansie also welcomed Dr. Stewart and welcomed Dr. Bikram Sharma, Hospitalist. Dr. 

Dansie announced the outcome of recent elections of officers as follows: 

 

Medicine Department 

Dr. Charles Knight – Chairman 

Dr. Zachary Nicholas – Vice Chairman 

 

Surgery Department 

Dr. Steven Croft – Chairman 

Dr. Jacques Denker – Vice Chairman 

 

General Services Department 

Dr. Christian Theodosis – Chairman 

Dr. Cielette Karn – Vice Chairman 

 

Dr. Dansie reported Dr. Chad Franks and Dr. Alan Brown have moved on to pursue other 

opportunities.  

 

The Bylaws Committee met November 27. They spoke with a legal consultant via telephone. Dr. 

Dansie feels they are about halfway through the items for review. They will meet again in 

December and hope to have a visit from the consultant in January. They are hoping to be through 

Page 4 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the November 28, 2017 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with General Medical Staff 

Page 2 

by January and then the changes will go to the Medical Staff to vote. It will be March or April 

for completion. 

 

HOSPITAL BOARD UPDATE 

 

Mr. Mathey said as of February 7, MHSC was in turmoil. The rumors at the time were the 

Medical Staff was going to walk out en masse. There were rumors the Medical Staff would be 

subject to heavy layoffs. The Board of Trustees assured the Medical Staff at that time that was 

not the plan. As of today, twelve doctors have left since February 7. Eleven resigned or chose not 

to renew. One terminated for cause. Two positions have been filled with new hires, we are 

recruiting for two, and eight positions are left vacant. There have been no reductions in force 

initiated by management or the Board. Mr. Mathey referenced some other rumors that were 

present and may still be now and he wanted to refute them: 

1. No one on the Board owns an interest in Aspen Mountain. 

2. No one on the Board is working on behalf of Aspen or other providers. 

3. John Kolb does not have an interest in Aspen Mountain. 

4. The County Commissioners do not directly manage the Hospital through the Board. The 

Board is not an agent of the Board of County Commissioners. Trustees are appointed by 

them to serve this Hospital. The Trustees’ responsibilities and duties are to the Hospital 

and the people that comprise this institution.  

 

Mr. Mathey said a topic of interest is terms and contracts of employment. The Board found some 

surprises when reviewing contracts. Mr. Mathey said they struggle with some of the information. 

Many have been resolved with time. He said his understanding is that physicians with contracts 

that have expired have maintained the same compensation. He doesn’t think that will change. 

Mr. Mathey said he understands people look out for their best interests. The Board does not fault 

individuals for working the best deal. Mr. Mathey said the Board sees greater cooperation and 

greater performance. Between the institution and each doctor there is a contract and an 

economical equation and we must see results. We are no longer losing ground; we are gaining 

ground slowly. The facility is in need of improvements and his personal plan is to find those 

needed changes. Mr. Mathey said the Board of County Commissioners offers the Hospital Board 

their help when and if needed. Hopefully we can pay our own way. Hopefully we don’t go to 

them for more assistance than they are already providing. Mr. Tardoni said he sees this as a 

responsibility he volunteered to take on. It’s a big responsibility with a big learning curve. He 

said this Board really thought about their actions and when looking for a CEO, listened, watched, 

and decided to hire Ms. Richardson. When looking at contracts, they asked Dr. Melinda Poyer, 

Chief Medical Officer, and others to help on a committee. They looked at options of consultants 

and after discussion, decided to go with what we have. Mr. Tardoni said the Board takes this 

very seriously and wants to hear from the Medical Staff. Mr. Jones thanked everyone involved in 

helping start the turnaround of the finances. He said that without the providers pitching in and 

doing their part, it doesn’t matter what the Board does. We had the first positive bottom line in 

17 months and it’s due to what the providers are doing to help. Dr. Steven Croft asked if 

contracts will continue as-is or will they be renegotiated? Mr. Mathey said he does not see 

substantial changes in contract terms. He does not see changes in compensation terms of 

contracts. He stressed that all negotiations are with the CEO, Ms. Richardson, and all physician 

contracts are subject to approval by the Board of Trustees. Dr. Matti said he appreciated the 

synopsis provided by the Trustees and said it is good information. He said it is good to hear we 

are making progress. Dr. Matti said there are plenty of things the providers can do to help. Mr. 

Mathey said it is gratifying to hear if the fear is behind us. Dr. Bill Sarrette said he has always 

Page 5 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the November 28, 2017 Board of Trustees Special Meeting with General Medical Staff 

Page 3 

enjoyed working at MHSC because of the camaraderie of the physicians. He said the lunch time 

was always a good time for discussions and working with colleagues. Structure in their schedules 

would help make that happen. Camaraderie is a strength. Ms. Richardson said lunches will begin 

again in the physician lounge on December 4. We are working out the specifics. She said it 

would help the nutrition staff to start lunch at 11:45 and they would like to get an idea of a head 

count. We all need to work together so we can keep moving forward. Ms. Richardson said we 

appreciate the providers. She said Clinic financials have improved significantly and she 

appreciates efforts with getting patients in and improving the volume. Ms. Richardson asked that 

we please keep working together. Dr. Matti mentioned the aesthetics in the medical imaging 

area. He said it is not a good perception to patients and asked if there are any plans for 

improvements. Mr. Mathey said there is a prioritized list reviewed by the Building and Grounds 

Committee. Until we have money, it’s a wish list. Mr. Mathey said great medical service can be 

impacted by a poor appearance in the facility and feels it is important to address. Mr. Jones said 

he and Mr. Tardoni serve on Building and Grounds and it all comes down to funds and we have 

to prioritize what is done first.  

 

CEO UPDATE 

 

Ms. Richardson said we have added to our Executive Leadership group. Ms. Tami Love is the 

new Chief Financial Officer, and Ms. Suzan Campbell is Chief Legal Executive/General 

Counsel. Ms. Richardson welcomed Dr. Stewart. Ms. Richardson said she serves on the Joint 

Conference Committee with Dr. Augusto Jamias, Dr. Dansie, Mr. Tardoni, and Mr. Mathey. 

They are talking about operational analysis. They asked the Hospital Leadership Team to come 

up with perspectives. Dr. Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer, has been tasked with gathering 

mission and vision statement ideas. This process involves everyone. Ms. Richardson invited the 

Medical Staff to offer challenges and suggestions and forward them to Dr. Dansie. The 

Committee is meeting again in early December. Ms. Richardson reported work continues on the 

Finance and Audit Committee Charter and Contract Policy. We are working through some of the 

legal claims out there but hope to have them resolved soon and focus on what we are here to do.  

 

Mr. Mathey said the next regular meeting is December 6 which is also the same day as the 

Christmas festivities for the community. He is considering starting the meeting at 1:00 PM 

instead of 2:00 PM. Regarding the January meeting, it is scheduled January 3. He said his 

preference would be to have the meeting on January 10 instead. The motion to make those two 

changes as discussed was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:45 PM. 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

Page 6 of 164



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 6, 2017 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

December 6, 2017, at 1:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following 

Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO; Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff President; Mr. 

Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of County Commissioners.  

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the October 26, 2017, special meeting with the Foundation 

Board as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. The motion 

to approve the minutes of the November 1, 2017, regular meeting as presented was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Mathey invited members of the community to address the Board. There were no comments. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie reported the Medical Staff met with the Board November 28. No committee meetings 

have been held since that time. The Medical Staff has been discussing Policy Stat. Dr. Dansie 

said just because the Medical Executive Committee may approve something, it is not effective 

until the entire process is complete. Dr. Dansie said an election of officers was held. Dr. Dansie 

was elected to continue as President for the next year. Dr. Samer Kattan will serve as Vice 

President and Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen will serve as Secretary/Treasurer. Dr. Dansie said the 

Joint Conference Committee will meet next week The Bylaws Committee meets December 19. 

The bylaws revision work continues.  

 

  

Page 7 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mr. Mathey said there would be an Executive Session and referenced Wyoming Statute 16-4-405 

(a)(ii, iii, ix, and x). The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Jones; second by 

Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.   

  

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 3:45 PM. 

 

The motion to approve the November 20, 2017 Credentials Committee Recommendations as 

follows for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Banu Symington, Oncology 

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Stacy Steans, Pediatrics 

 Dr. Jad Wakim, Hematology/Oncology 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Pritam Neupane, Pulmonary Medicine 

 Dr. John Iliya, General Surgery 

4. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Philip Najm, Emergency Medicine  

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 Years) 

 Dr. Jade Nunez, Tele Burn (U of U) 

 Dr. Jason Young, Tele Burn (U of U) 

 Dr. Kevin Whitehead, Cardiology (U of U) 

 Dr. Michael Allen, Tele Radiology (VRC)  

 Dr. Douglas Belton, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Lawrence Briggs, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Naomi Saenz, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

CEO Contract Update 

 

Mr. Mathey said terms have been negotiated and agreed upon. The motion to authorize the 

President of the Board of Trustees to execute the contract was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

Mission and Vision Statements 

 

Dr. Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer, said she sent out a survey to gather input and received 

sixty-four insightful replies. The responses were compiled and key words were identified. 

Page 8 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Executive Leaders will put together some options and bring to the Board for review. Dr. Nielson 

said they plan to present information at the January Board meeting. 

 

Committee Charters 

 

Mr. Kelsey reported a subcommittee of the Finance and Audit Committee met and through a 

lengthy process worked on the charter. He reviewed the highlights. The proposal is for anything 

under $25,000 to be given to the Board for review following approval by the Chief Executive 

Officer. Anything over $25,000 would go to the Board for approval. It was clarified the amount 

for review and approval is the total dollar amount involved, not the yearly amount if broken out. 

Mr. Kelsey said if we find this isn’t working, we will make adjustments. He said the Committee 

number of voting members was expanded and said the term “hospital’ includes the clinics when 

appropriate. Mr. Kelsey said with the approval of the charter and with approval of the contracts 

policy, the group feels we don’t need a spending matrix. Mr. Jones said this makes it more timely 

to get the things needed to move forward. He thanked everyone involved in the process. The 

motion to approve the Finance and Audit Committee Charter as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

Contract Policy 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the Finance and Audit Committee reviewed the proposed policy carefully. It 

spells out the types of contracts involved in detail and references agreements requiring the Board 

of County Commissioners’ approval. Regarding the section referencing service agreements 

associated with contracts for $25,000 or more, Mr. Kelsey requested a spelling correction to read 

this excludes service agreements of Board approved capital equipment. Dr. Sowada commended 

the group for blending contracts and spending authority into one item. The motion to approve the 

contract policy as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

University of Utah Affiliation Agreement  

 

Mr. Mathey said representatives from the Hospital and the University of Utah (U of U) came 

before the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) November 21 and the affiliation agreement 

was approved by the BOCC at that time. Mr. Mathey said the BOCC appreciated that the U of U 

reps appeared and took questions. It was a good example of how business should be conducted 

with a public entity. Mr. Mathey said we are waiting to receive the official, fully-executed 

original. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

CEO REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson announced Ms. Tami Love has been appointed Chief Financial Officer. Ms. 

Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel, has been added to the Executive 

Leadership team. Ms. Leslie Taylor has been appointed as the Interim Clinic Operations 

Page 9 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Manager. Ms. Richardson said the Executive Leaders have been working on updates to the 

organization chart and it will be presented to the Board for approval. The Green River and Rock 

Springs Chambers of Commerce have invited Ms. Richardson to speak in December and 

January. She has been asked to speak to a local Girl Scouts troop this month. Ms. Richardson 

said we had limited space in the Rock Springs holiday parade and were pleased to receive third 

runner-up honors. Ms. Richardson said she feels our efforts were well-received by the 

community. The Standard and Poor’s credit review will happen in January or February. Ms. 

Richardson said we hope to have six months of financial information to present. She said 

everyone has been working very hard and we have been very busy. We keep moving forward. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Building and Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Jones asked Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, to provide a brief report. Mr. Horan said the 

CT project is going out to bid this month. Work should begin in early January. The 

recommendation at this time is that two behavioral health rooms are sufficient for now. We sent 

plans to the Wyoming Department of Health regarding the medical office building inspection 

work. We expect no problem obtaining an extension. We are still looking at storage options 

including the old hospital buildings owned by the County. Mr. Horan said we heard from The 

Joint Commission that all issues were resolved. The hospital holiday outdoors lighting will be lit 

later in the evening. Ms. Richardson said we wanted to have the lights but wanted to go with 

about 50% of the prior cost. Mr. Horan noted his appreciation to the Board for the Building and 

Grounds Committee and the attention they give to infrastructure.  

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Kelsey said there was no information to report at this time. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditures Requests: Request FY 18-11 was presented and the motion to approve 

$6,143 for a glide scope was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

Narratives: Ms. Love announced Ms. Jan Layne is the new Controller. Ms. Love reviewed the 

narratives included in the packet. She reported a gain of $278,815 for October and said revenue 

was over budget, expenses were under budget, collections were $6.5M and days of cash on hand 

went up by one day to 107. Ms. Love said Mr. Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Director, is 

anticipating $7.9M in collections for November. Mr. Kelsey thanked Ms. Love for adding the 

financial key terms on pages 75 and 76 of the packet. He requested the addition of “gain”, “total 

net gain”, and “net operating loss” to the listing. Mr. Jones said he knows we still have work to 

do but he thinks there is reason to celebrate. He thanked everyone involved in the progress.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for $289,151.37 as presented by Mr. 

Cheese was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

Page 10 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Investment Recommendation: The motion to approve the investment recommendation as 

requested was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Committee worked on selection of an administrator of employee benefits, 

made a decision, and the company was scheduled to be on-site. He said the Hospital decides 

which businesses we will do payroll deductions for. Ms. Campbell provided information from 

Ms. Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director, as follows: 

 Orientation of 8 new employees in November 

 Upcoming orientation in December for 9 employees 

 Critical Job Analysis completed on 8 different positions 

 Turnover is 20% as of October 31, 2017 

 Moratorium on updating employee policies per CEO 

 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada reported draft minutes of the last meeting are included in the packet. The Board also 

received additional information from Ms. Amanda Molski, Quality Director, in narrative form. 

She said that information will be included in future Board meeting packets. Dr. Sowada said we 

are still working on Emergency Department thru-put. There have been significant improvements 

in times. She said we are still working on it and thanked the staff. She noted the fun changes on 

the wall decorations in the Ortho area. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Dansie said the group will meet again December 12. Mr. Mathey said they will continue 

work on the strategic plan. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Contract Consent Agenda 

 

Ms. Campbell said this item is removed from the agenda following approval of the contract 

policy. Dr. Sowada asked for additional information on the TriZetto agreement. Mr. Cheese 

reviewed the automatic cash adjustment and posting services provided and our need. He said it 

should help on the front-end in the Clinic. His opinion is it is a great contract for the Clinic. Mr. 

Tardoni said TriZetto does fall in the Board’s approval purview due to the annual cost. The 

motion to approve the CEO signing the TriZetto agreement as presented on behalf of the 

Hospital was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones said the Board is putting together a basket for the Red Tie Gala. He asked Trustees to 

let him know by the end of the week if they wanted to participate. He said the Board has 

Page 11 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the December 6, 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

challenged the BOCC with a prize at the end of the evening for the basket that brings in the most 

funds between the two.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.  

The meeting adjourned at 4:55 PM.  

 

         

       

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Marty Kelsey, Secretary 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 164



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board
of Trustees

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting

Tuesday - December 19, 2017

5:00 PM

Medical Office Building Conference Room

Page 13 of 164



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

Medical Office Building Conference Room 

5:00 PM 

 

Tuesday – December 19, 2017 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Committee Members 

Taylor Jones, Chair   Irene Richardson 

Ed Tardoni    Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

      

 

Guests 

Gerry Johnson – Facilities 

Stevie Nosich - Facilities   

John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve November 14, 2017 Minutes     

2. Project(s) Review  

A. Laundry Update        

B. CT Project Update        

C. Prioritized Projects List      

3. Old Business  

A. Storage Options          

4. New Business       

5. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 2 of 4Page 14 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 14, 2017 

 

 

Trustee Committee Member Present:  Mr. Taylor Jones 

Mr. Ed Tardoni  

 

Staff Committee Member Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

      Ms. Tami Love 

 

Staff Committee Member Absent:  Ms. Irene Richardson 

 

Guests:  Mr. Gerry Johnston  

  Ms. Stevie Nosich 

  Mr. Clayton Radakovich  

Mr. John Kolb, County Commissioner Liaison 

 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order.  
 

Meeting Minutes 
 

The motion to approve the minutes of the October 17, 2017, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.   
 

Projects Review 
 

Laundry Update 

 

Mr. Horan said he had nothing new to report.   

 

CT Project Update 

 

Mr. Horan reported things are moving along. The design drawings were recently reviewed and 

we resolved some of the mechanical issues. He said the construction cost estimate is 

approximately $385,000. Mr. Horan said it looks like we are on schedule to ramp up at the first 

of the year and finish by the end of February 2018.  

 

Prioritized Projects List 

 

Mr. Horan reported on items on the prioritized list as well as new items following the Wyoming 

Department of Health visit to the Medical Office Building (MOB). Mr. Radakovich reviewed 

licensing, regulations, and request for variance in the MOB. He said he feels confident the 

process will move forward if we follow the process they have set for us. Mr. Radakovich 

explained all of the options regarding licensing we investigated that are not feasible. Mr. Kolb 

asked if there is any way the County can assist and thanked Mr. Radakovich for the information. 

Mr. Jones expressed concern with putting important things off. Mr. Kolb added that it is 

important our hospital is still operating.  

Page 3 of 4Page 15 of 164



 

Minutes of the November 14, 2017 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

Mr. Radakovich reviewed behavioral health rooms. He said the bottom line is he thinks putting 

in another room at this time should be back-burnered. He said if there are changes at Southwest 

Counseling, that could have an impact. He believes we are providing an incredibly safe 

environment for our patients at this time. Mr. Radakovich said we are creating a risk assessment 

for every room to be covered every time.  

 

Mr. Radakovich provided a Joint Commission update. He said all physical environment items are 

complete with the exception of positive latching doors and we are working on that item. He said 

we have increased environmental rounding to every month instead of every three months.  

 

Old Business 

 

Storage Options 

 

Mr. Horan reviewed costs provided associated with the former hospital property. He said he is 

going to contact Mr. Chuck Radosevich with the County to schedule a tour of the area. The 

Committee discussed potential uses of the buildings. Mr. Tardoni said we need to keep our 

minds open.  

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Kolb suggested Mr. Horan contact Mr. Radosevich to see if the County can partner with the 

County for generator testing requirements.  

  

 

The Committee agreed to meet again on Tuesday, December 19 at 5:00 PM.  

 

 

 
Submitted by Cindy Nelson. 

Page 4 of 4Page 16 of 164



Page 17 of 164



Page 18 of 164



Page 19 of 164



Page 20 of 164



Page 21 of 164



Page 22 of 164



Page 23 of 164



December 27, 2017 Finance & Audit
Committee Meeting

12/27/17

MHSC Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 24 of 164



II. Approve Meeting Minutes Taylor
Jones

III. Capital Requests FY18 Taylor
Jones

IV. Building & Grounds Committee Report James
Horan

V. IT Report Rich Tyler

NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2017 FINANCIAL
STATEMENT.doc
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS COMBINED - NOVEMBER 2017.pdf
 

 
FY18 Other Operating Revenue Detail.xlsx
 

 
CLINIC NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2017 FINANCIAL
STATEMENT.doc
 

 

FY18 FINANCIALS CLINIC - NOVEMBER 2017.pdf
 

 
FY18 FINANCIALS HOSPITAL ONLY - NOVEMBER
2017.pdf
 

 

1. Financial Statements Tami Love

18 MHSC STATISTICS November 2017.pdf
 

 
18 Board Graphs November 2017.pdf
 

 

2. Statistics Tami Love

FY18 DAYS IN AR November 2017.pdf
 

 

3. Accounts Receivable report Tami Love

HDRHCD November 2017 Board.pdf
 

 

18 FTE REPORT - 121017.pdf
 

 

18 PAYOR MIX November 2017.pdf
 

 

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Tami Love

B. Approve Investment Report Tami Love

4. Budget Adherence Tami Love

VI. Financial Report  

Agenda
 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order Taylor
Jones

Finance and Audit Comm Draft Minutes November 29 2017.doc
 

 

18 CAPITAL.xlsx
 

 

Building & Grounds December 2017.doc Jim Horan

IT Report fo Finance December 2017.docx Rich Tyler

Meeting Book - December 27, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

Agenda

Page 25 of 164



18 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 11-30-17.pdf
 

 

2. Title 25 County Voucher Ron
Cheese

3. Legal Summary Tami Love

4. Cash Disbursements Tami Love

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

FY18 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher.pdf
 

 

18 BOARD LEGAL November 2017.pdf
 

 

C. Other Business
 

 

18 DAYS OF CASH ON HAND NOV 17.pdf
 

 

VII. New Business
 

 

FY18 CASH DISBURSEMENTS - November 2017.pdf
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Taylor
Jones

VIII. Adjournment Taylor
Jones

Page 26 of 164



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

November 29, 2017 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Taylor Jones 

     Mr. Marty Kelsey 
 

Non-Voting Members Present: Dr. Larry Lauridsen 

Ms. Tami Love 

     Ms. Irene Richardson 

Mr. Rich Tyler 
 

Non-Voting Member Absent:  Mr. Ron Cheese  

Dr. Augusto Jamias 
 

Guests:    Mr. Jim Horan 

     Ms. Kari Quickenden 

Mr. John Kolb, County Commissioner Liaison 

Ms. Jenna Riley, Crimson Market Advantage 

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order.  
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of October 25, 2017, as presented was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  
 

Capital Requests FY 18 
 

Mr. Kelsey commented that he had reviewed capital request FY18-11 for a Pediatric Glide Scope 

baton. The motion to approve forwarding FY18-11 for $6,143.00 to the full Board for review and 

consideration was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  
 

 

Crimson Market Advantage Presentation 

 

Ms. Jenna Riley from Crimson Market Advantage made a presentation on the product we are 

presently using.  She presented a power point of the product and talked about how we have used it 

in the past and how other hospitals are using the product.  Our contract is coming up for renewal 

in March 2018. 

 

Building and Grounds Committee Report 
 

Mr. Horan updated the committee on ongoing projects.  Mr. Horan reported Mr. Clayton 

Radakovich, Compliance Director, presented updated information on the usage of the behavioral 

health rooms. Mr. Horan said the Committee approved the recommendation to stay with the two 

BH rooms at this time. Mr. Horan reached out to Chuck Radosevich with the County to set up 

times for our group to tour the old hospital buildings. Mr. Horan said we have returned our plan 

of action to the Wyoming Department of Health and have asked for an extension to have the 

Page 27 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the October 25, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

work completed.  Mr. Horan commented that he would be coming to this committee to request 

Capital funds to complete the project. Mr. Horan said they are working on the last item from The 

Joint Commission findings.  The doors have been approved and will be completed soon.  The 

Christmas lights have been scaled down this year and have been completed.  Mr. Taylor asked 

about the plaque recognition for the donation made by Sun Rock.  Mr. Horan said they are 

having trouble coordinating with their representative but are still working on it. 
 

IT Report 
 

Mr. Tyler reported they are hoping to make a decision on Pulse Check versus T-System in the 

next two weeks.  He has been looking into costs for offsite storage backups and will be 

requesting Capital funds for this project in the near future. We are finishing up the annual IT 

security audit. 
 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narrative and financial highlights. She announced we had a gain for the 

second month in a row. Volume, including inpatient surgeries, births, ER visits and outpatient 

visits are under budget. Expenses continue to be lower and collections were very good in 

October. Ms. Love reported a loss in the clinic and noted it was lower than budgeted. Mr. Jones 

commented on the improvement in the Clinic. Mr. Kelsey asked about the “cost savings plan” 

mentioned in the narrative.  Ms. Love said it actually refers to the fiscal year budget and the cost 

savings plan from last year continuing into the new year.   
 

Ms. Love distributed the confidential budget adherence and clinic provider statistics information.  

 

Ms. Love mentioned that we are still working on a productivity report to be included in the 

financial packet.  We want to make sure all of the departments are using the correct metrics and 

that it makes sense to everyone involved. 

 

Mr. Kolb said that it is likely that the sixth cent tax will be over collected due to the timing of the 

notice.  He is approximating we will receive an additional $600,000 to be used on a similar 

project. 

 

Ms. Richardson pointed out the year to date losses are 10 times less than the losses for the same 

period last year.  Mr. Jones asked about two of the graphs on the dashboard worksheet and why 

they are so high.  Ms. Love will look into the calculations and report back to the committee. 
 

Approve Investment Report 
 

The motion to approve to forward to the full Board for review and consideration the investment 

report as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 
 

Other Business 
 

Mr. Love noted the preliminary bad debt estimate amount of $302,834.  She read the explanation 

prepared by Mr. Cheese in his absence.  A motion to approve the preliminary bad debt report 

was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

Page 28 of 164



 

 

Minutes of the October 25, 2017 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

 

 

Mr. Love reported on the submitted vouchers to the County. She asked Mr. Kolb about the 

process for receiving maintenance fund distributions as we had just received a fairly large 

amount not related to the last submitted voucher.  He said he would meet with Mr. Robb 

Slaughter about the process.  
 

Old Business 
 

Finance & Audit Charter and Spending Matrix Review 
 

Mr. Jones reviewed the completed Finance and Audit Committee charter and thanked the 

committee for all their work on finishing the charter and spending policies.  A motion to approve 

the newly revised charter was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones.  Motion carried.   

 

Mr. Jones and Mr. Kelsey reviewed the Contracts Requiring Board Approval policy.  It was 

noted that service contracts that are attached to previously approved capital purchases will not 

need to be approved separately.  Ms. Richardson added that all contracts and capital purchases 

not needing Board approval will be included in the Board packet for information purposes.  Two 

other policies, Contract Management policy and Capital Purchases policy, were included in the 

packet for information only.  These two policies will be approved internally through Policy Stat. 

  

 

New Business 
 

Financial Forum Discussion 
 

Ms. Love said it was agreed that the December meeting would be cancelled due to the Holidays.  

The November financial packet will be completed and included in the January board packet for 

review and approval. 
  

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 31 at 4:00 PM. 

 

 
Submitted by Tami Love 

 
 

Page 29 of 164



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2018

Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

MEDICAL IMAGING C10-3V ULTRASOUND TRANSDUCER 12,762                  12,762              -                       FY18-2

RESPIRATORY PURITAN BENNETT 980 VENTILATOR TABLED 3 MOS -                       FY18-3

RESPIRATORY ARTERIAL BLOOD GAS/ELECTROLYTE ANALYZER 31,500                  31,920              420                      FY18-4

INFORMATION SERVICES VIRTUAL SERVER EXPANSION 39,281                  39,281              -                       FY18-5

INFECTION CONTROL TROPHON EPR (2) 19,526                  17,326              (2,200)                  FY18-6

LABORATORY BIOLOGICAL HOOD 9,566                    9,241                (325)                     FY18-7

LABORATORY PLASMA THAWER 2,858                    2,857                (1)                         FY18-8

UROLOGY CLINIC GOBY WIRELESS URODYNAMICS SYSTEM 20,720                  20,720              -                       FY18-9

MEDICAL IMAGING EMC CENTERA 2 NODE UPGRADE 12,772                  12,773              1                           FY18-10

SURGERY GLIDE SCOPE PEDIATRIC BATON 6,143                    6,143                -                       FY18-11

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

Total Budgeted 2,000,000 155,127          153,022       (2,105)            

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 155,127     

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2018 155,127     

Remaining Balance FY2018 Capital Budget 1,844,873  

Page 30 of 164



  Page 1 of 1 

Building and Grounds monthly report   12/27/2017 

 

BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

12/19/2017 
Trustee Committee Members Present: Ed Tardoni, Taylor Jones. 

Committee Members Present: Irene Richardson, Tami Love, Jim Horan 

Guests Present: John Kolb, Gerry Johnston, Brittany Griffin, Bill Current 

Minutes taken by: Cindy Nelson  

Location:   MOB meeting room 

Time started: 5:00P 

                                                                       

 

TOPIC DISCUSSION RESPONSIBLE ACTION TIMELINE 
Offsite storage B. Griffin discussed environmental concerns and guidelines 

for record storage. Conex containers are not viable. Much 

purging of records has been done to reduce storage 

needs. If annual purging takes place, little additional 

storage space will be needed. Also discussed suitability and 

cost of old hospital for storage as well as other options 

including maintaining the status quo. 

J. Horan Schedule a second trip to the old 

hospital auxiliary buildings to further 

assess suitability for storage. 

Spring 2018 

Laundry Upgrade No new information  J. Horan 1. Improved steam piping and 

insulation. 

2. Construct storage space within 

Laundry area. 

3. Add extra exhaust from space.  

Review progress next 

meeting. 

CT Replacement A “Call-for-bid” has been advertised and a pre-bid 

conference for all interested contractors has been held on 

December 14. Bid opening is scheduled for December 21. 

J. Horan Continue to monitor progress. Report progress next 

meeting. 

Itemized Maintenance 

projects. 

These projects are to be considered in conjunction with 

WDH issue listed below.  

1. Failed steam expansion joint (update given) 

2. Collapsing retaining wall (discussion including request 

for additional engineering by outside firm or by using 

the County Engineer). 

3. Replace original ceilings and sprinkler heads. 

4. Seal mechanical room floor. 

1. J. Horan 

2. J. Horan to 

contact 

private firm 

J.Kolb to 

contact 

County PE. 

3. J. Horan 

4. J. Horan 

1. Work in progress 

2. More engineering proposals. 

3. No discussion. 

4. No discussion. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

Wyoming Department of 

Health (WDH) inspection 

review of our Medical 

Office Building (MOB) 

and 3000 College Hill 

Building (CH)  

Several items will need to be addressed for licensing by 

WDH: 

1. Return-air ducts for invasive procedure rooms. 

2. Temp-limiting devices on handwashing faucets. 

3. Aerator removal from handwashing faucets. 

4. Continuous exhaust in restrooms and soiled/wet areas. 

5. Sprinkler remediation and signage at CH 

J. Horan/ C. 

Radakovich 

1. MOB – Rooms defined. Proceed 

to gaining engineering design. 

CH—apply for variance 

2. Completed 

3. Completed 

4. MOB completed/ CH in progress 

5. In progress 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

TJC findings review One issue remains open from TJC survey. 7 double doors to 

have positive latching installed. Parts are ordered. 

J. Horan Work with contractors to install as 

soon as possible. 

Review progress next 

meeting. 

“Thank you” plaque for 

donated stone. 

Obtain commemorative plaque for “Sun-Rock” in 

appreciation for their donation and for formal presentation. 

J. Horan/ C. 

Nelson 

Plaque has been ordered. Contact 

with contractor in progress.  

Date/ time for 

presentation TBD. 

Time Adjourned:  5:50P 

Next Meeting:  January 16, 2018; 5PM 

Respectfully Submitted:           Jim Horan 

Page 31 of 164



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

December 2017 

Rich Tyler 

1. We have decided not to move forward with PulseCheck at this time.  (We will continue 

to utilize Tsystems, and we expect to start the appliance upgrade process in the next 

few weeks) 

2. We are currently evaluating off-site, cloud-based, data storage options.  We currently 

store data backups on tape media, and are looking to start storing the hospital data off-

site.  It is best practice to store data off-site and encrypted.  We hope to have a few 

proposals for this project in the next month or two.  Our insurance company, and our 

third party IT audit firm highly recommends this project.  We continue to evaluate 

different options. 

 

Page 32 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance Committee      December 26, 2017 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for November was a gain of 

$407,767, compared to a gain of $439,803 in the budget.  This yields a 5.43% operating 

margin for the month compared to 5.81% in the budget. The YTD net operating gain is 

$126,197, compared to a gain of $423,929 in the budget.  This represents a YTD 

operating margin of 0.35% compared with 1.14% in the budget.   

 

The total net gain for the month was $664,196, compared to a gain of $634,908 in the 

budget.  The YTD total net gain is $1,303,992, compared to a gain of $1,399,454.  This 

represents a YTD total profit margin of 3.63% compared with 3.77% in the budget.  

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 3.84.  The existing bond covenants require that 

we maintain Debt Service Coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

 

VOLUME.  Average inpatient census for the month was 10; under budget by 8.9. YTD 

average census is 11.1 compared to 18.4 in the budget and 18.4 in the prior year. 

 

Inpatient surgeries were 4 under budget at 35 and outpatient surgeries were over budget 

by 7 at 156.   There were 6,675 outpatient visits, under budget by 223.     

 

Total ER visits were 1,384, which was under budget by 12.  There were 45 newborns in 

November, over budget by 5. Births are under budget by 21 year to date.     

  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $13,036,894, under budget by $598,911.  

Inpatient revenue was under budget by $1,647,422, outpatient revenue was over budget 

by $1,155,999 and the employed Provider Clinic was under budget by $107,489. 

 

YTD total revenue was $66,140,152, under budget by $1,168,268.  Inpatient revenue is 

under budget by $6,250,283, outpatient revenue is over budget by $4,791,748 and the 

Provider Clinic is under budget by $709,734.  We are experiencing a shift from inpatient 

care to outpatient care.  YTD inpatient revenue is 21% of total revenue compared to 30% 

in the prior year.   

 

Page 33 of 164



Net patient revenue for the month was $7,150,870, under budget by $267,565.  YTD net 

patient revenue was $34,977,530, under budget by $1,306,846.   

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 45.1% for November compared to 46% in the 

budget and 45.5% for prior year.  YTD deductions from revenue are 47.1%, compared to 

46.1% in the budget and 44.7% for the same period in FY 2017.    

 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $7,103,978 under budget by $25,003.   

Salary & Wage, Physician Fees, Utilities, Insurance Expense and Depreciation were 

under budget for November.  The following categories were over budget for November: 

 

Fringe Benefits-This expenses is over budget by $27,105.  Group Health was 

over budget by $43,752 and Unemployment was over by $20,000. 

Contract Labor – This expense is over budget by $123,879. OB, ICU, Surgery, 

Emergency Room and Ultrasound are over budget for the month.  

Purchased Services – This expense is over budget by $114,062.  Consulting fees, 

Advertising, Legal fees and Pharmacy Management fees are all over for the 

month. 

Supplies – This expense is over budget by $131,912.  Oxygen, Blood, Drugs, 

Maintenance supplies and Other Non-Med/Surg supplies are over budget for 

November. 

Repairs & Maintenance - This expense is over budget by $5,118.  Contract 

Maintenance and Maintenance & Repair service are both over budget for the 

month. 

Other Operating Expenses – This expense is over budget by $5,276.  Freight 

and Physician and Employee recruitment are over budget for November. 

Leases and Rentals – This expense is over budget by $1,802. 

 

 

Our monthly expenses continue to stay around the $7 million mark.  As of November, the 

daily cash expense is steady at $211,000, down from a high of $236,000 in last fiscal 

year. 

 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating cash at month end was $13,179,667, up $172,912 from 

October.  Collections for the month of November were $7,887,063, one of our highest 

collection months ever.  The Days of Cash on Hand for November are 107, the same as 

October.  The Days were not affected by the high collection month due to the 3-payroll 

month in November.  The existing bond covenants require that we maintain 75 days of 

cash on hand for compliance.   

   

Gross receivables at month end were $19,618,134, down $970,678 from the prior month.  

Net patient receivables at month end were $10,244,451, down $836,668 from last month.  

Days in Receivables are 43 for November, down 3 days from October.  

 

Page 34 of 164



OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER.  Inpatient volumes, including inpatient surgeries, are 

projecting to come in under budget.  We continue to experience a shift from inpatient 

care to outpatient care with inpatient revenue and patient days, admits and discharges 

being under budget.  Births are projecting to come in over budget.  ER visits are 

projecting to be under budget.  Outpatient visits, including imaging and lab services, are 

coming in right at budget in December.  Gross patient revenue is projecting to come in at 

$12.5M, which is under budget with net revenue projecting to $6.6M. Collections are 

projecting to come in at $6.7M, which is under budget.  

 

With the continued decrease in volumes, expenses are also projecting to come in under 

budget.  As we continue in our busy season, we hope to sustain the lower level of 

expenses and be able to achieve regular monthly gains from the increase in revenue.  

Salaries, benefits, consulting fees, contract labor and physician fees should decrease in 

fiscal year 2018. 

Page 35 of 164



Page 36 of 164



Page 37 of 164



Page 38 of 164



Page 39 of 164



Page 40 of 164



Page 41 of 164



Page 42 of 164



Page 43 of 164



Page 44 of 164



Page 45 of 164



Page 46 of 164



Page 47 of 164



Page 48 of 164



Page 49 of 164



Page 50 of 164



Page 51 of 164



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            9,938.82 

Medical Records               919.99 

Document Copy Service               140.25 

Pharmacy sales 14.22                

Prenatal Reimbursement                (31.88)

HPSA          35,411.30 

PALS Class               110.00 

BLS Classes               279.00 

Vending machine commissions               433.32 

Hampton & Newman Deposition               500.00 

Interlare            1,819.62 

Lifeline reclass                (40.00)

Reduction SCHHC (from Corrected Reversal)          (1,110.56)

Pacific Steel                  33.21 

Sports Physicals            1,025.00 

County Maintenance Fund            1,187.70 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue               141.55 

Reverse Sw. Peds Dup Inv.          (2,100.00)

Solvay Occupation Med retainer 900.00              

Castle Rehab Transport 780.00              

Rocky Mountain Home Care 80.00                

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00              

Foundation Reimbursement Pointer 2,715.00          

Jim Bridger Physician Services 14,875.00        

Mission at Castle Rock Physician Services-Reverse Dup 3,846.00          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 15,150.00        

Shriners Hospital 346.36              

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 21,222.87        

Cafeteria sales 23,749.88        

July Totals 133,136.65   133,136.65          

AUGUST MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            9,750.93 

Medical Records               113.20 

Document Copy Service                  20.00 

Radiology Film Copies                    5.00 

HPSA               604.84 

BLS Classes               155.00 

Black Butte Coal               494.11 

Central Supply                  34.29 

Disproportionate Share               179.00 

Pacific Steel               169.02 

BCBS Refund Check            1,774.28 

Sports Physicals            1,300.00 

County Maintenance Fund               512.64 

UOFU Payment  - sent to wrong venue will be reversed               206.00 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer               900.00 

Castle Rehab Lab Courier 260.00              

Prenatal Classes 60.00                

Jim Bridger Retainer 1,600.00          

Jim Bridger Physician Services 16,480.00        

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,050.00        

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 18,438.39        

Cafeteria sales 32,323.35        

August Totals 98,430.05     231,566.70          

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE NOVEMBER 2017

Page 52 of 164



SEPTEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            7,161.16 

Medical Records               628.70 

Radiology Film Copies                    5.00 

Pharmacy sales                  86.05 

ACLS/BLS Classes               555.00 

HEALTH CARE SERVICES                    0.03 

Reclass Black Lung/Clinic              (494.11)

Central Supply               626.68 

Meaningful Use          19,208.52 

Interlare          12,489.95 

BCBS Refund Check              (747.80)

U OF U Payment  - sent to us by mistake.                  41.20 

Sports Physicals               100.00 

County Maintenance Fund          10,297.70 

Vending Machine Refunds               158.99 

Shriners               346.36 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer               900.00 

Castle Rock            3,749.85 

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00              

Jim Bridger Physician Services 11,730.00        

Sweetwater Peds 1,280.00          

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,050.00        

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 23,604.96        

Foundation 1,123.66          

Cafeteria sales 25,319.18        

SEPTEMBER Totals 132,021.08   363,587.78          

OCTOBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income            7,266.90 

Medical Records               559.20 

Pharmacy sales                  77.98 

ACLS/BLS/PALS Classes               186.00 

Prenatal Classes                  99.22 

Cache Valley Oil Rebate                  10.00 

Castle Rock Lab Courier               260.00 

Affiliated Insurance Claim          44,949.01 

HPSA          30,730.96 

Law Office Cullmore                  25.00 

Interlare            2,714.30 

County Maintenance Fund          43,489.18 

Vending machine commissions               663.13 

Shriners               346.36 

Solvay Occupation Med retainer               900.00 

Jim Bridger Retainer 800.00              

Castle Rock            2,403.95 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 12,230.00        

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 15,150.00        

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 25,979.19        

Cafeteria sales 37,186.41        

OCTOBER Totals 226,026.79   589,614.57          

NOVEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income          14,110.32 

Medical Records                  80.85 

Prenatal Classes               136.10 

Castle Rock Lab Courier               260.00 

BCBS take back              (206.00)

Inmar Rebates               127.29 

Red Tie Gala            2,300.00 

Supplies                    3.72 

Copies                  40.00 

Grants              (393.81)

Page 53 of 164



Rocky Mountain Home Care               480.00 

HPSA               335.04 

County Maintenance Fund       269,311.46 

Jim Bridger Retainer 1,600.00          

Castle Rock            2,980.65 

Jim Bridger Physician Services 10,412.50        

Tata Occupation Medicine on site 15,150.00        

High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 17,172.80        

Cafeteria sales 26,973.80        

NOVEMBER Totals 360,874.72   360,874.72          

Page 54 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance Committee      December 26, 2017 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC – NOVEMBER 2017    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for 

November was a loss of $401,039, compared to a loss of $468,718 in the budget. The 

YTD net operating loss is $2,807,310, compared to a loss of $3,179,564 in the budget.   

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,770 for November, under budget by 93 visits. YTD 

patient visits are 22,703, under budget by 1,442 visits. 

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for November was $1,388,670, under budget by 

$107,489.    YTD revenue was $6,712,192, under budget by $709,733.  The Clinic 

physicians also generate hospital revenue in addition to their office revenue.  This is 

called enterprise revenue, which consists of various sources, including Lab, Medical 

Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of gross enterprise revenue generated for November 

from the Clinic is $3,640,953.  This equates to $2,002,524 of net enterprise revenue with 

an impact to the bottom line from enterprise revenue of $242,105.  The gross enterprise 

revenue represents 28% of the total Hospital revenue for November.    

 

Net patient revenue for the Clinic for November was $775,795, under budget by 

$100,704.  YTD net patient revenue was $3,757,258, which was under budget by 

$325,515.   

 

Deductions from revenue for the Clinic were booked at 44% for November.  Historically, 

the Clinic has a more favorable payor mix than the hospital.   The Clinic has a much 

larger Commercial insurance population than the hospital and a smaller Medicare, 

Medicaid and Self Pay population than the hospital.  In November, the YTD payer mix 

was as follows; Commercial Insurance and Blue Cross consisted of 57.4% of revenue, 

Medicare and Medicaid consisted of 36.1% of revenue and Self Pay consisted of 5.78% 

of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $1,224,150, which was under budget 

by $173,067.   YTD expenses were $6,830,663, which was under budget by $691,673. 

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which are about 85.6% of 

YTD total expenses.   

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   The Provider Clinic revenue plus enterprise revenue 

consists of 39% of total hospital gross patient revenue for November.    

Page 55 of 164



Page 56 of 164



Page 57 of 164



Page 58 of 164



Page 59 of 164



Page 60 of 164



Page 61 of 164



Page 62 of 164



Page 63 of 164



Page 64 of 164



Page 65 of 164



Page 66 of 164



Page 67 of 164



Page 68 of 164



Page 69 of 164



Page 70 of 164



Page 71 of 164



Page 72 of 164



Page 73 of 164



Page 74 of 164



Page 75 of 164



STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTD YTD YTD YTD
Nov-17 Nov-17 Nov-16 Nov-17 Nov-16 Nov-15 Nov-14

Volumes:
Case Mix

Medicare 1.4142 1.5606 1.5606 1.3132 1.4825 1.3947 1.2378
All payers 0.8402 0.9215 0.9215 0.8721 0.8707 0.8457 0.8985

Admissions
Med 41 87 87 280 385 439 438
ICU 28 34 34 123 161 149 180
Surgery 6 12 12 28 48 51 64
OB 46 39 39 213 238 230 241
Newborn 45 40 40 209 231 225 226

Total Admissions 166 212 212 853 1,063 1,094 1,149

Discharges
Med 55 101 101 326 450 481 424
ICU 12 12 12 63 70 89 136
Surgery 7 12 12 42 65 72 110
OB 45 39 39 210 234 231 239
Newborn 45 40 40 207 228 226 223

Total Discharges 164 204 204 848 1,047 1,099 1,132

Patient Days:
Med 159 360 360 938 1,836 1,758 1,474
ICU 46 76 76 246 381 410 570
Surgery 26 64 64 159 203 209 278
OB 68 67 67 354 393 371 362
Newborn 68 60 60 356 367 335 334

Total Patient Days 367 627 627 2,053 3,180 3,083 3,018

Observation Bed Days 153 101 101 602 470 378 275

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 35 39 39 146 202 161 186
OP Surgeries 156 149 149 786 702 728 704

Outpatient Statistics:
X-ray 885 717 717 3,750 3,505 3,549 3,501
Mammography 191 181 181 791 759 875 871
Ultrasound 328 271 271 1,518 1,347 1,323 1,302
Cat Scan 433 380 380 2,148 1,971 1,988 1,531
MRI 86 64 64 536 467 548 536
Nuclear Medicine 51 37 37 247 176 186 150
PET Scan 2 8 8 51 52 29 28
Laboratory 2,578 2,908 2,908 12,817 14,967 13,131 12,133
Histology 176 145 145 810 713 629 727
Respiratory Therapy 325 269 269 1,360 1,246 1,120 992
Cardiovascular 481 478 478 2,221 2,299 2,314 1,931
Sleep Lab 28 38 38 147 125 96 85
Cardiac Rehab 326 412 412 1,660 2,327 2,139 1,970
Physical Therapy 120 275 275 942 1,252 1,254 1,434
Dialysis 305 235 235 1,557 1,187 1,333 1,398
Medical Oncology 159 187 187 821 957 1,021 539
Radiation Oncology 201 293 293 1,247 1,489 1,638 833
Total Outpatients Visits 6,675 6,898 6,898 32,623 34,839 33,173 29,961

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 4,341 4,318 4,815 20,358 22,327 28,826 25,122
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 429 545 566 2,345 2,727 2,603 2,565

ER visits admitted 138 160 160 662 731 719 721
ER visits Discharged 1,246 1,236 1,236 6,130 6,242 6,462 6,464
Total ER visits 1,384 1,396 1,396 6,792 6,973 7,181 7,185

Page 76 of 164



18 Board Graphs November 12/27/2017 9:02 AM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

NOVEMBER 2017

  FYE 2017 ACTUAL   FYE 2018 BUDGET   FYE 2018 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

5

10

15

20

25

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$14,000

$0
$100
$200
$300
$400
$500
$600
$700
$800
$900

$1,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

Page 77 of 164



18 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 1 of 5 12/19/2017 3:32 PM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 10/29/2017 11/12/2017 11/26/2017 12/10/2017 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 18.00 12.1 9.3 9.9 10.4 (7.6)               0.50               -                      11.0 (7.0)
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 46                 42.4 42.2 47.9 42.3 (3.2)               -                 5.64                    44.0 (1.5)
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 84                 85 88 70 96 11.9              26.00             -                      966.0
BIRTHS 20                 23 22 20 20 0.1                -                 -                      226.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,860            1472 989 1275 1261 (599.0)          -                 14.00                  15096.0
                 -OP $000 4,416            5372 4402 4712 4838 422.0            126.00           -                      56016.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,276            6844 5391 5987 6099 (177.0)          112.00           -                      71112.0
Adjusted Patient Days 850               786                 709                 648                 701                 (149.0)          (53.31)            -                      8682.2

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 30.8           24.4            23.3            23.6            23.1            (7.6)               -                 0.45                    24.3 (6.4)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 8.0             9.3              7.1              3.1              3.1              (4.9)               -                 0.05                    6.4 (1.6)
610 OB FLOOR 5.9             5.8              5.6              5.6              5.7              (0.2)               0.13               -                      5.6 (0.3)
611 NURSERY 7.3             7.8              7.5              7.0              7.5              0.2                0.44               -                      6.8 (0.5)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 6.1             5.0              6.2              6.1              5.7              (0.5)               -                 0.40                    5.9 (0.3)
620 ICU 13.9           12.6            12.0            14.1            14.2            0.3                0.10               -                      13.4 (0.5)
630 OR 13.3           14.8            15.8            15.3            14.2            0.9                -                 1.13                    14.4 1.1
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 7.1             6.1              6.5              5.8              6.7              (0.4)               0.84               -                      6.1 (1.0)
633 RECOVERY 2.0             2.3              3.4              2.7              3.9              1.9                1.17               -                      2.8 0.8
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3.1             2.8              2.9              3.0              3.0              (0.1)               0.01               -                      2.9 (0.2)
640 DIALYSIS 5.0             4.0              4.0              4.5              5.0              (0.0)               0.47               -                      4.7 (0.3)
650 ER 25.6           25.1            25.0            29.6            24.9            (0.7)               -                 4.68                    24.8 (0.8)
651 TRAUMA 1.0             1.9              2.0              2.1              1.9              0.9                -                 0.16                    1.6 0.6
652 SANE 0.5             1.5              1.2              1.0              1.2              0.7                0.21               -                      1.2 0.7
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6             5.9              5.9              5.8              6.1              (0.6)               0.25               -                      6.1 (0.5)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             4.3              4.0              4.1              4.2              (1.3)               0.08               -                      4.8 (0.7)
700 LABORATORY 29.5           29.6            29.2            29.5            29.3            (0.2)               -                 0.18                    29.6 0.1
701 HISTOLOGY 2.0             1.9              2.1              2.0              2.0              (0.0)               0.04               -                      2.0 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 1.0             0.7              1.2              1.0              1.2              0.2                0.15               -                      1.0 0.0
710 RADIOLOGY 7.7             9.4              9.6              9.9              9.6              1.9                -                 0.23                    8.9 1.2
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 2.0             1.1              1.2              1.0              1.2              (0.8)               0.12               -                      1.1 (0.9)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.6             3.7              3.5              3.3              3.2              (0.4)               -                 0.03                    4.3 0.7
713 NUC MED 1.9             1.9              1.8              1.6              2.0              0.1                0.40               -                      1.7 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 5.1             4.1              3.8              4.3              4.1              (1.0)               -                 0.20                    4.5 (0.6)
715 MRI 1.0             1.0              1.1              1.0              1.1              0.1                0.10               -                      1.1 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.1              -              -              (0.1)               -                 -                      0.1 (0.0)
720 RESPIRATORY 6.1             5.6              5.0              6.0              5.5              (0.6)               -                 0.46                    5.5 (0.6)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.8             1.3              1.9              1.1              1.8              0.0                0.69               -                      1.5 (0.3)
722 CARDIO 2.8             2.8              2.8              2.8              2.9              0.1                0.05               -                      2.8 (0.0)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4             2.4              2.3              2.2              2.3              (0.1)               0.14               -                      2.3 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 4.0             3.7              4.2              3.1              3.5              (0.5)               0.38               -                      3.6 (0.4)
780 EDUCATION 2.5             2.5              2.5              1.8              2.0              (0.5)               0.23               -                      2.4 (0.1)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY 5.5             5.7              5.5              4.0              3.2              (2.3)               -                 0.81                    5.0 (0.5)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.0             1.5              1.7              1.7              1.9              0.9                0.18               -                      1.5 0.5
784 ACCREDITATION 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              (0.0)               -                 0.02                    2.0 (0.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              2.9              (0.1)               -                 0.13                    3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.7           12.5            12.7            12.3            12.2            0.5                -                 0.10                    12.4 0.7
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.0             4.2              4.1              4.0              4.3              (0.7)               0.31               -                      4.3 (0.7)
800 MAINTENANCE 11.0           11.2            10.9            10.6            10.9            (0.1)               0.28               -                      10.6 (0.4)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5           23.6            23.4            24.0            24.2            0.7                0.16               -                      23.5 0.0
802 LAUNDRY 6.5             6.4              6.3              5.9              5.7              (0.8)               -                 0.20                    5.6 (0.9)
803 BIO MED 2.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)               -                 0.03                    1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.1             8.1              8.2              8.1              7.5              (0.6)               -                 0.63                    7.7 (0.4)
850 PURCHASING 5.0             5.0              5.0              5.0              5.0              -                -                 -                      5.0 (0.0)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3.0             3.0              3.0              3.0              3.0              -                -                 -                      3.0 0.0
870 DIETARY 17.6           16.7            16.4            16.9            17.3            (0.4)               0.34               -                      16.9 (0.8)
871 DIETICIANS 1.3             1.5              1.4              1.4              1.4              0.1                0.07               -                      1.4 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 6.0             5.0              5.0              6.0              5.5              (0.5)               -                 0.50                    5.5 (0.5)
901 COMM SVC 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 (0.0)
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              -                -                 -                      2.0 0.0
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.5             1.4              1.3              1.3              1.3              (0.2)               -                 0.04                    1.2 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 5.3             5.5              5.0              4.9              5.0              (0.3)               0.04               -                      5.4 0.1
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8.0             8.0              8.1              7.1              7.0              (1.0)               -                 0.03                    7.9 (0.1)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.7             3.7              3.7              3.7              4.7              0.0                1.01               -                      4.2 (0.5)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 5.0             4.8              4.8              3.8              4.3              (0.7)               0.51               -                      4.7 (0.3)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14.8           14.6            14.5            13.8            14.7            (0.1)               0.89               -                      14.5 (0.3)
941 ADMITTING 13.4           14.3            13.8            13.8            14.1            0.7                0.34               -                      14.4 1.0
942 COMMUNICATION 2.9             2.9              2.9              2.4              2.3              (0.5)               -                 0.13                    2.9 0.1
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4.0             3.2              3.1              3.9              4.0              (0.0)               0.10               -                      3.8 (0.2)

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 78 of 164



18 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 2 of 5 12/19/2017 3:32 PM

PPE 10/29/2017 11/12/2017 11/26/2017 12/10/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

949 DENKER 3.8             5.2              5.0              5.6              4.0              0.2                -                 1.57                    3.9 0.1
950 OLIVER 3.7             3.2              3.2              2.9              3.0              (0.7)               0.10               -                      3.1 (0.6)
951 JOHNSON 4.3             -              -              -              -              (4.3)               -                 -                      2.4 (1.9)
953 STEWART 1.0             -              -              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      0.2 (0.8)
954 WHEELER 2.0             1.9              2.0              1.9              1.9              (0.1)               -                 0.03                    1.9 (0.1)
955 CHOU 1.0             -              -              -              -              (1.0)               -                 -                      0.5 (0.5)
956 KATTAN 2.0             1.7              1.7              1.7              1.6              (0.4)               -                 0.08                    2.1 0.1
958 VERONESE 2.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.5              (0.5)               0.50               -                      1.1 (0.9)
959 GREWAL 2.0             1.0              1.3              2.0              2.2              0.2                0.13               -                      1.9 (0.1)
960 SANDERS 2.0             2.1              2.2              2.1              2.1              0.1                0.01               -                      2.1 0.1
961 DANSIE 1.5             2.1              2.1              2.0              2.1              0.6                0.10               -                      2.1 0.6
962 BOWERS 1.5             1.8              1.6              1.7              1.6              0.1                -                 0.05                    1.7 0.2
963 LONG 1.5             0.8              0.9              0.9              0.9              (0.6)               -                 -                      1.3 (0.2)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 0.0
965 DOLCE 1.0             1.0              0.9              0.9              1.0              -                0.15               -                      1.0 (0.0)
966 OCC MED 2.0             1.2              1.3              1.2              1.3              (0.7)               0.10               -                      1.8 (0.2)
968 GILMARTIN 2.0             -              -              -              -              (2.0)               -                 -                      1.0 (1.0)
969 PAWAR 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              0.0                0.00               -                      2.0 0.0
970 CROFTS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)               -                 -                      1.0 (0.3)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.5             1.5              1.8              1.6              1.7              0.2                0.13               -                      1.6 0.1
972 FARSON CLINIC -            -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.5             0.9              0.9              0.9              2.6              1.1                1.68               -                      1.0 (0.5)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 24.9           19.7            18.5            19.6            19.6            (5.3)               0.02               -                      19.5 (5.4)
975 NEUPANE 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              1.8              (0.2)               -                 0.18                    2.0 0.0
976 LEHMAN 1.5             0.8              0.8              0.8              0.8              (0.7)               -                 -                      0.8 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2             4.2              4.2              4.2              3.6              (0.6)               -                 0.60                    4.9 0.7
981 CROFT 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.2 0.2
982 CHRISTENSEN 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      0.8 (0.3)
983 MACK 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.0 0.0
984 FRANKS 1.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              0.3              (1.1)               -                 0.75                    0.9 (0.4)
985 NELSON -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.0 0.0
986 BONGIORNO 1.0             -              -              -              -              (1.0)               -                 -                      0.5 (0.5)
988 CURRY 3.5             3.8              3.8              3.7              3.9              0.4                0.23               -                      3.7 0.2
989 SHAMO -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 1.3             1.0              1.2              1.6              1.7              0.4                0.06               -                      1.1 (0.2)
992 ASPER 1.0             1.0              1.0              1.0              1.0              -                -                 -                      1.1 0.1
993 LIU 2.0             2.0              2.0              2.0              2.0              0.0                0.01               -                      2.0 0.0
994 DUCK 1.5             1.3              0.5              0.5              1.5              0.0                1.08               -                      0.9 (0.6)
995 A. BROWN 2.0             2.6              2.3              2.8              2.1              0.1                -                 0.66                    2.2 0.2
996 SARETTE 0.6             0.5              0.6              -              0.9              0.3                0.90               -                      0.4 (0.3)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 483.4         452.5          447.9          446.9          447.8          (35.6)         0.92               -                      455.4           (28.0)            
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         423.0          420.2          376.0          417.7          (22.2)         41.64             -                      407.8           (32.1)            

WORKED % Paid 91% 93% 94% 84% 93% 2% 0.09               -                      90% (0.0)                 

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 3.0 8.8 11.4 12.1 12.8 9.8            0.71            -                 10.4             7.4               

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,599,017  1,357,473   1,453,260   1,317,912   1,424,990   (174,028)   107,078.09   -                      17,268,151    

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $41.35 $37.50 $40.56 $36.86 $39.77 ($1.57) 2.91               -                      #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           8.06            8.85            9.66            8.94            2.31          -             0.72                7.34 0.71             
per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 28.0           23.1            20.6            20.8            20.8            (7.2)               -                 0.04                    21.8 (6.2)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.3             9.3              6.4              3.0              2.9              (4.3)               -                 0.09                    6.0 (1.3)
610 OB FLOOR 5.4             5.6              5.2              5.0              5.2              (0.1)               0.24               -                      5.1 (0.3)
611 NURSERY 6.6             7.6              6.2              6.2              7.0              0.4                0.78               -                      6.2 (0.5)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 5.6             4.9              5.9              5.3              5.4              (0.2)               0.03               -                      5.4 (0.1)
620 ICU 12.6           11.7            10.6            12.5            12.7            0.0                0.20               -                      11.7 (1.0)
630 OR 12.1           13.8            14.7            13.4            13.4            1.3                0.02               -                      13.3 1.2
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.5             5.8              5.8              4.1              6.2              (0.3)               2.05               -                      5.5 (0.9)
633 RECOVERY 1.8             2.3              4.3              2.1              2.8              1.0                0.66               -                      2.4 0.5
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.8             2.7              2.7              2.4              2.9              0.1                0.48               -                      2.5 (0.3)
640 DIALYSIS 4.6             4.0              4.0              4.4              4.8              0.3                0.48               -                      4.4 (0.2)
650 ER 23.3           24.8            23.6            25.0            23.3            0.0                -                 1.63                    22.7 (0.6)

Page 79 of 164



18 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 3 of 5 12/19/2017 3:32 PM

PPE 10/29/2017 11/12/2017 11/26/2017 12/10/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

651 TRAUMA 0.9             1.9              1.9              1.4              1.9              1.0                0.47               -                      1.4 0.5
652 SANE 0.5             1.1              1.2              0.9              1.2              0.8                0.37               -                      0.9 0.5
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             5.5              5.9              4.3              5.5              (0.5)               1.28               -                      5.4 (0.6)
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.0             3.6              3.9              3.7              4.1              (0.9)               0.47               -                      4.3 (0.7)
700 LABORATORY 26.8           26.4            26.6            24.2            27.1            0.2                2.88               -                      26.3 (0.6)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             1.6              2.0              1.5              2.0              0.2                0.46               -                      1.8 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             0.7              1.2              1.0              1.2              0.3                0.15               -                      1.0 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 7.0             8.4              9.3              8.7              8.6              1.6                -                 0.08                    8.0 1.0
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.8             1.1              1.2              0.9              1.1              (0.8)               0.10               -                      1.0 (0.8)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.3             3.4              3.5              3.1              3.1              (0.2)               -                 0.00                    3.9 0.6
713 NUC MED 1.7             1.8              1.7              1.2              2.0              0.3                0.80               -                      1.5 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 4.6             4.0              3.8              3.5              3.9              (0.7)               0.37               -                      4.1 (0.5)
715 MRI 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.8              1.1              0.2                0.25               -                      1.0 0.1
716 PET SCAN 0.1             -              0.1              -              -              (0.1)               -                 -                      0.1 (0.0)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.6             5.2              5.0              5.2              5.1              (0.5)               -                 0.13                    4.9 (0.7)
721 SLEEP LAB 1.6             1.2              1.9              0.7              1.7              0.1                1.05               -                      1.4 (0.3)
722 CARDIO 2.5             2.3              2.6              2.4              2.6              0.1                0.20               -                      2.5 (0.1)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             2.1              2.3              1.9              2.2              (0.0)               0.30               -                      2.1 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.6             3.2              2.8              2.5              3.3              (0.3)               0.88               -                      3.2 (0.4)
780 PATIENT ED 2.3             2.5              2.3              1.6              2.0              (0.3)               0.43               -                      2.2 (0.1)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             1.0              0.6              0.6              1.0              0.1                0.38               -                      0.9 (0.0)
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 5.0             5.1              5.1              3.2              3.0              (2.0)               -                 0.23                    4.5 (0.5)
783 INFECTION CONTROL 0.9             1.5              1.7              1.6              1.9              0.9                0.28               -                      1.4 0.5
784 COMPLIANCE 1.8             1.7              1.8              1.3              2.0              0.1                0.65               -                      1.8 (0.0)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.9              2.2              2.6              2.8              0.0                0.17               -                      2.7 (0.0)
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 10.6           10.9            12.2            10.1            11.4            0.8                1.38               -                      10.9 0.3
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.6             4.0              4.1              3.4              4.3              (0.2)               0.90               -                      3.9 (0.7)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.0           10.4            9.9              9.0              10.5            0.5                1.45               -                      9.6 (0.4)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           22.5            21.9            20.8            22.8            1.4                1.97               -                      21.4 0.0
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             6.2              6.2              5.2              5.3              (0.6)               0.11               -                      5.3 (0.7)
803 BIO MED 1.8             0.9              1.0              0.8              1.0              (0.8)               0.15               -                      0.9 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 7.4             7.0              7.3              6.7              6.9              (0.4)               0.27               -                      6.7 (0.7)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.9              4.6              3.8              4.6              0.1                0.80               -                      4.3 (0.3)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             3.0              2.7              2.5              3.0              0.2                0.52               -                      2.6 (0.1)
870 DIETARY 16.1           16.3            15.7            15.2            15.1            (0.9)               -                 0.04                    15.4 (0.6)
871 DIETICIANS 1.2             1.5              1.3              1.1              1.4              0.2                0.33               -                      1.3 0.1
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             4.9              4.3              4.4              5.1              (0.4)               0.75               -                      4.5 (1.0)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.8              1.0              0.1                0.20               -                      1.0 0.0
902 MED STAFF SVC 1.8             1.3              1.9              1.5              2.0              0.2                0.51               -                      1.7 (0.1)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.4             1.4              1.2              1.2              1.3              (0.1)               0.06               -                      1.1 (0.2)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.9              1.0              0.1                0.10               -                      0.9 (0.0)
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.8             4.1              4.7              4.3              4.7              (0.2)               0.39               -                      4.8 (0.0)
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             0.9              1.0              0.9              1.0              0.1                0.10               -                      0.9 (0.0)
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             7.7              7.7              5.9              7.0              (0.2)               1.12               -                      7.1 (0.1)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.3             3.6              3.7              3.2              4.7              0.4                1.53               -                      3.9 (0.4)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             4.8              4.7              2.5              3.9              (0.6)               1.42               -                      4.2 (0.4)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 13.5           13.1            13.0            10.9            13.7            0.2                2.79               -                      12.7 (0.8)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           13.1            13.3            12.3            13.1            0.9                0.79               -                      13.2 1.0
942 COMMUNICATION 2.6             2.8              2.8              2.4              2.2              (0.4)               -                 0.13                    2.7 0.1
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             3.1              3.0              3.5              3.9              0.3                0.36               -                      3.4 (0.2)
949 DENKER 3.5             5.0              5.0              4.2              3.8              0.3                -                 0.43                    3.4 (0.1)
950 OLIVER 3.4             3.1              3.2              2.2              3.0              (0.4)               0.80               -                      2.8 (0.6)
951 JOHNSON 3.9             -              -              -              -              (3.9)               -                 -                      2.1 (1.8)
953 STEWART 0.9             -              -              0.8              1.0              0.1                0.20               -                      0.2 (0.8)
954 WHEELER 1.8             1.5              2.0              1.7              1.8              (0.1)               0.10               -                      1.7 (0.1)
955 CHOU 0.9             -              -              -              -              (0.9)               -                 -                      0.4 (0.5)
956 KATTAN 1.8             1.7              1.7              1.6              1.0              (0.8)               -                 0.56                    1.8 0.0
958 VERONESE 1.8             1.0              1.0              0.9              1.0              (0.8)               0.13               -                      0.8 (1.0)
959 GREWAL 1.8             1.0              1.2              1.7              2.1              0.3                0.37               -                      1.6 (0.2)
960 SANDERS 1.8             1.7              2.0              2.0              2.1              0.3                0.13               -                      1.9 0.1
961 DANSIE 1.4             2.0              2.1              1.7              2.1              0.8                0.44               -                      1.9 0.5
962 BOWERS 1.4             1.3              1.5              1.4              1.5              0.1                0.14               -                      1.4 0.0
963 LONG 1.4             0.8              0.9              0.7              0.9              (0.5)               0.25               -                      1.1 (0.3)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.9              1.0              0.1                0.13               -                      0.9 (0.0)
965 DOLCE 0.9             1.0              0.9              0.7              1.0              0.1                0.35               -                      0.8 (0.1)
966 OCC MED 1.8             1.2              1.3              1.1              1.3              (0.5)               0.18               -                      1.6 (0.2)
968 GILMARTIN 1.8             -              -              -              -              (1.8)               -                 -                      0.8 (1.0)
969 PAWAR 1.8             2.0              1.9              1.7              1.9              0.1                0.22               -                      1.7 (0.1)
970 CROFTS 1.2             0.8              1.0              0.7              1.0              (0.2)               0.30               -                      0.9 (0.3)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1.4             1.5              1.8              1.5              1.6              0.2                0.13               -                      1.5 0.1
972 FARSON CLINIC -            -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1.4             0.8              0.9              0.7              0.9              (0.5)               0.20               -                      0.8 (0.5)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 22.7           18.5            17.4            16.0            19.1            (3.6)               3.11               -                      17.8 (4.9)
975 NEUPANE 1.8             2.0              1.9              1.5              1.7              (0.2)               0.15               -                      1.7 (0.1)
976 LEHMAN 1.4             0.8              0.8              0.7              0.7              (0.7)               -                 -                      0.7 (0.7)
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             4.2              4.2              4.2              3.6              (0.2)               -                 0.60                    4.6 0.7

Page 80 of 164



18 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 4 of 5 12/19/2017 3:32 PM

PPE 10/29/2017 11/12/2017 11/26/2017 12/10/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

981 CROFT 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.8              1.0              0.1                0.20               -                      0.9 (0.0)
982 CHRISTENSEN 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.5              1.0              0.0                0.50               -                      0.7 (0.2)
983 MACK 0.9             0.9              1.0              0.8              1.0              0.1                0.20               -                      0.8 (0.1)
984 FRANKS 1.2             1.0              1.0              0.7              -              (1.2)               -                 0.70                    0.8 (0.4)
986 BONGIORNO 0.9             -              -              -              -              (0.9)               -                 -                      0.4 (0.5)
988 CURRY 3.2             2.8              3.6              2.6              3.3              0.1                0.73               -                      3.3 0.1
991 JAMIAS 1.2             1.0              1.2              1.4              1.7              0.5                0.26               -                      1.0 (0.2)
992 ASPER 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.5              0.9              (0.0)               0.40               -                      0.9 (0.1)
993 LIU 1.8             2.0              2.0              1.7              2.0              0.2                0.28               -                      1.9 0.1
994 DUCK 1.4             0.8              0.5              0.3              1.1              (0.2)               0.88               -                      0.6 (0.8)
995 A. BROWN 1.8             2.6              2.2              2.3              2.1              0.3                -                 0.22                    2.0 0.1
996 SARETTE 0.6             0.5              0.6              -              0.9              0.3                0.90               -                      0.4 (0.2)

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 439.9         423.0          420.2          376.0          417.7          (22.23)       41.64             -                      407.8           (32.1)            

CNTRCT FTES (Inc above) 3.0                8.8                 11.4               12.1               12.8               9.80          0.71               -                      10.4             7.4               

OVERTIME HOURS Current OT
OT Dollars YTD Hours

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 4.5              32.0            2.5              -              -                -                 2.50                    63.5                
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 107.8          55.5            -              15.8            362.88          15.75             -                      382.0              
610 OB FLOOR 0.8              8.8              -              -              -                -                 -                      21.3                
611 NURSERY 0.3              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      16.8                
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 1.0              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      8.8                  
620 ICU 11.3            5.8              -              -              -                -                 -                      118.8              
630 OR 1.8              55.8            2.5              20.0            859.22          17.50             -                      159.0              
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 3.0              20.5            2.0              0.8              30.69            -                 1.25                    62.0                
633 RECOVERY 1.0              12.5            -              -              -                -                 -                      13.5                
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.5              0.8              0.5              2.8              60.85            2.25               -                      19.3                
640 DIALYSIS 1.8              0.5              1.5              -              -                -                 1.50                    23.8                
650 ER 5.8              1.8              21.8            2.3              82.48            -                 19.50                  206.8              
651 TRAUMA 3.5              0.5              -              1.0              22.37            1.00               -                      9.8                  
652 SANE -              0.8              -              2.5              127.38          2.50               -                      4.5                  
660 RADIATION ONC 15.3            2.8              2.8              5.3              403.58          2.50               -                      62.0                
661 MEDICAL ONC -              0.8              -              0.5              14.25            0.50               -                      4.1                  
700 LABORATORY 15.5            26.5            22.5            20.8            531.23          -                 1.75                    256.0              
701 HISTOLOGY -              4.5              -              3.5              110.40          3.50               -                      16.5                
702 BLOOD BANK 0.3              0.3              1.5              -              -                -                 1.50                    4.5                  
710 RADIOLOGY 4.0              0.5              2.3              0.5              19.57            -                 1.75                    23.8                
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      1.0                  
712 ULTRASOUND 4.5              0.5              0.8              0.3              17.99            -                 0.50                    26.5                
713 NUC MED 0.5              -              0.8              3.5              150.90          2.75               -                      7.0                  
714 CAT SCAN 4.0              0.8              -              2.8              93.21            2.75               -                      22.5                
715 MRI -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      2.5                  
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.3                  
720 RESPIRATORY -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      35.3                
721 SLEEP LAB -              3.3              -              10.0            466.60          10.00             -                      19.3                
722 CARDIO -              -              -              3.8              90.23            3.75               -                      14.5                
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
780 PATIENT ED 7.8              5.5              2.5              1.8              82.06            -                 0.75                    23.3                
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.0              7.3              -              -              -                -                 -                      25.0                
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      4.8                  
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.8                  
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 0.3              -              0.3              -              -                -                 0.25                    0.8                  
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 11.0            10.0            4.8              25.8            1,589.37      21.00             -                      137.5              
800 MAINTENANCE 19.0            11.8            0.8              1.3              73.88            0.50               -                      53.5                
801 HOUSEKEEPING 22.0            21.3            25.8            9.8              219.53          -                 16.00                  206.5              
802 LAUNDRY 2.5              2.0              1.0              2.5              58.06            1.50               -                      60.8                
803 BIO MED -              -              -              0.3              14.97            0.25               -                      2.3                  
810 SECURITY 1.0              21.5            1.5              8.3              248.15          6.75               -                      123.0              
850 PURCHASING -              -              0.3              -              -                -                 0.25                    1.0                  
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
870 DIETARY 60.8            26.5            30.0            45.0            795.16          15.00             -                      491.5              
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
905 NURSING ADMIN 14.3            0.8              7.3              -              -                -                 7.25                    98.5                
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  

Page 81 of 164



18 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 5 of 5 12/19/2017 3:32 PM

PPE 10/29/2017 11/12/2017 11/26/2017 12/10/2017 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 4.8              1.3              4.5              4.5              134.82          -                 -                      34.8                
941 ADMITTING 108.3          107.5          143.5          233.0          5,582.65      89.50             -                      1,192.5           
942 COMMUNICATION 6.0              -              17.5            21.0            471.07          3.50               -                      59.0                
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 5.8              6.5              2.5              1.5              31.05            -                 1.00                    25.3                
949 DENKER 2.6              1.4              -              2.8              81.46            2.75               -                      21.4                
950 OLIVER 1.4              2.9              0.5              2.5              79.24            2.00               -                      21.2                
951 JOHNSON -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      8.4                  
953 STEWART -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      2.8                  
955 CHOU -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      6.8                  
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
959 GREWAL -              -              2.3              3.3              103.55          1.00               -                      6.3                  
960 SANDERS 5.0              13.5            7.3              7.8              244.28          0.50               -                      127.3              
961 DANSIE 2.0              2.5              1.9              5.9              318.33          4.00               -                      31.7                
962 BOWERS 2.5              2.5              -              3.8              89.63            3.75               -                      20.5                
963 LONG -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      1.0                  
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
965 DOLCE -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      1.0                  
966 OCC MED 17.3            21.3            14.3            22.0            1,111.22      7.75               -                      178.8              
968 GILMARTIN -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      10.5                
969 PAWAR 0.8              0.3              -              0.3              14.70            0.25               -                      5.0                  
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      0.3                  
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 62.3            26.8            8.0              39.5            1,118.24      31.50             -                      369.5              
975 NEUPANE 3.8              2.8              0.8              3.8              169.05          3.00               -                      17.0                
976 PA LEHMAN 2.0              2.5              1.9              5.9              318.87          4.00               -                      31.8                
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
981 CROFT -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
982 CHRISTENSEN 3.5              4.9              3.1              6.6              188.98          3.50               -                      18.1                
983 MACK -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
984 FRANKS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
986 BONGIORNO -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
988 CURRY 3.5              4.9              3.1              6.6              189.27          3.50               -                      81.6                
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
992 ASPER -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  
993 LIU 0.3              0.6              -              0.4              18.03            0.37               -                      3.9                  
994 DUCK 0.3              0.6              -              0.4              18.52            0.38               -                      3.9                  
995 A. BROWN 7.5              7.3              3.3              9.5              445.65          6.25               -                      38.0                
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -              -                -                 -                      -                  

TOTAL OT HOURS 569.5          551.0          349.5          571.0          17,254       221.50           -                      5,152.1        
TOTAL OT FTEs 7.1              6.9              4.4              7.1              2.77               -                      5.4              
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.7% 1.7% 1.2% 1.8% 0.01               0.0%

Page 82 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

11/30/17

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Nov-16 52
Dec-16 54
Jan-17 55
Feb-17 53
Mar-17 51
Apr-17 53
May-17 46
Jun-17 45
Jul-17 45
Aug-17 43
Sep-17 44
Oct-17 44
Nov-17 42

CLINIC AR DAYS
Nov-16 63
Dec-16 60
Jan-17 62
Feb-17 56
Mar-17 57
Apr-17 64
May-17 56
Jun-17 47
Jul-17 50
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 52
Oct-17 50
Nov-17 56

ORTHO AR DAYS
Nov-16 41
Dec-16 51
Jan-17 53
Feb-17 41
Mar-17 51
Apr-17 53
May-17 44
Jun-17 52
Jul-17 47
Aug-17 50
Sep-17 54
Oct-17 45
Nov-17 35

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17

63 
60 62 

56 57 
64 

56 

47 
50 50 52 50 

56 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17

41 

51 53 

41 

51 53 

44 

52 
47 

50 
54 

45 

35 

ORTHO AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Nov-16 Jan-17 Mar-17 May-17 Jul-17 Sep-17 Nov-17

52 54 55 53 51 53 

46 45 45 43 44 44 42 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 83 of 164



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 20.21% 20.10% 18.37%
Blue Cross 25.43% 23.37% 23.66%
Medicaid 8.62% 8.24% 9.99%
Medicare 34.10% 37.37% 36.77%
Self Pay  8.84% 7.99% 9.42%
Other 2.80% 2.93% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 31.22% 28.00% 28.94%
Blue Cross 26.87% 29.37% 30.49%
Medicaid 12.46% 12.65% 14.70%
Medicare 22.65% 23.47% 19.07%
Self Pay  6.21% 5.78% 6.18%
Other 0.59% 0.73% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 30.35% 38.00% 39.50%
Blue Cross 44.06% 33.16% 27.91%
Medicaid 7.27% 5.19% 6.32%
Medicare 14.53% 18.62% 23.02%
Self Pay  3.62% 3.99% 2.71%
Other 0.16% 1.04% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 21.39% 21.07% 19.86%
Blue Cross 25.82% 24.04% 24.39%
Medicaid 8.97% 8.58% 10.34%
Medicare 32.75% 35.87% 34.80%
Self Pay  8.52% 7.73% 8.96%
Other 2.71% 2.71% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

Five months ended November 30, 2017
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 84 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

11/30/17

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.300% 8,700,000 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,376,883
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 0.300% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.860% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,969,344
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK 1.500% 13,539,405 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,253,433
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 1.016% 404,098 39 39 39 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 1.016% 104,078 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 106,021
TOTAL 24,047,580 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 17,005,721

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 17,005,720.89$       

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 11/30/17 2,166,209                
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 10.2

RECOMMENDATION:

MAINTAIN FUNDS IN CURRENT INVESTMENTS DUE TO COMPETITIVE INTEREST RATES,
 AND LIQUIDITY OF FUNDS.

24,047,580 23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 17,005,721

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018

Page 85 of 164



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

11/30/2017

237.36

154.07
135.26

106.86
91.17

107.48

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

152,647 161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 228,643 179,717 

200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 
229,138 

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 YTD 2018

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 86 of 164



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

August 2017 $25,316.51
August 2017 $6,466.36
August 2017 $12,235.93
September 2017 $24,309.75
October 2017 $19,404.20
November 2017 $4,335.89

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted as of November 30, 2017 $92,068.64

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2018 $92,068.64

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2018 $87,732.75

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $4,335.89

FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $601,920.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $87,732.75

 FY18 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $514,187.25

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY17 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $608,812.00

County Maintenance FY18 - July $1,187.70
County Maintenance FY18 - August $512.64
County Maintenance FY18 - September $10,297.70
County Maintenance FY18 - October $43,489.18
County Maintenance FY18 - November $269,311.46

$324,798.68

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $284,013.32

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending November 30, 2017

Page 87 of 164



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Legal Fees By Fiscal Year

FY 2018
Dray, Dyekman, Reed & Healey PC $1,650.00
Edwards Law Office, P.C. $94,665.00
Hirst Applegate, LLP $94,187.75
Jamieson & Robinson, LLC $29,046.52
John H. Robinson, P.C. $17,120.57
Phillips Law, LLC $128,873.75
Settlements $50,000.00
Sundahl, Powers, Kapp & Martin, LLC $962.50

Total FYTD 2018 $416,506.09

Page 88 of 164



Page 89 of 164



Page 90 of 164



Page 91 of 164



Page 92 of 164



Page 93 of 164



Page 94 of 164



Page 95 of 164



Page 96 of 164



Page 97 of 164



Page 98 of 164



Page 99 of 164



Page 100 of 164



Page 101 of 164



Page 102 of 164



Page 103 of 164



Page 104 of 164



Page 105 of 164



Page 106 of 164



Page 107 of 164



Page 108 of 164



Quality Committee Summary Report 
December 2017 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

VALUE DASHBOARD 

The Value Dashboard serves as a means to provide a snapshot of our data and progress of goals as 

outlined in MHSC’s organizational QAPI, Patient Experience, and Safety Plan. The dashboard remains a 

work in progress as we define how to measure each goal and develop meaningful data and information 

that can be used for improvement initiatives. Plans to include color coding and arrows to know direction 

of ideal trends will be included in future versions of the dashboard. The dashboard is not all-

encompassing of data and metrics measured at MHSC, but rather, an overview of the QAPI aims for 

improvement. The goal is to provide a quick snapshot of where we stand with our organizational goals 

and strategies towards value at MHSC. Quarter 4 2017 data has been provided for your review. Please 

note that Q4 ends on December 31st and therefore the data is not complete and could change.  

 

Infection Prevention. We had 0 CAUTIs for quarter 3 (7/1-9/30).  There were a total of 58 inpatients that 

had Foleys, and a total of 140 Foley days for this quarter.  Our average patient days with a foley was 2.4. 

 

We had 0 CLABSIs this quarter.  We had 18 patients with central lines, for a total of 41 days.  The 

average days a patient had a central line in place was 2.3 

 

We had 0 VAE/VAP events this quarter.  We had 6 patients on ventilators, for a total of 10 ventilator 

days.  The average days any patient was on a vent was 1.7. 

 

We had 0 hospital acquired MRSA or CDI occurrences for this quarter, 0 MRSA BSIs from the community, 

and 6 C.Diff infections from the community.   

 

Quality. Adherence to the Sepsis early management bundle measure continues to fluctuate. Our goal is 

to see trends increasing. We have not yet achieved this goal. Continuing education (via HLC which begins 

in January) and adding emphasis on sepsis screens during daily multidisciplinary rounding by adding to 

whiteboards were identified as opportunities for improvement.  

 

October influenza screening and administration rate for inpatients was 94% for Q3 2017, with 

November’s rate at 94%. The goal is to sustain this level of adherence in screening and administration 

throughout Q1 2018.  

 

Opportunities for improvement exist in head CT/MRI results for stroke patients within 45 minutes of 

arrival, with small denominator values each month. Improvement opportunities addressed and new 

process for alerts and communication being put in place through the electronic health record to 

streamline communication of urgent necessity for this patient population. Work group meets this month 

and will provide further updates at meeting in January.  

 

ED Throughput average (mean) time for admitted patients at 317 minutes for Q4 2017. Interventions for 

improvement continue to occur in ED and Inpatient setting.  

 

ED admit decision time to admit departure time remains above national benchmark at 149 mins for Q4 

2017. This measure will correlate to the overall ED throughput time for admitted patients.  

 

Page 109 of 164



Quality Committee Summary Report 
December 2017 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

ED throughout time for patients discharged from ED at 173.64 min for Q4 2017 with national 

benchmarks at 134 minutes.  

 

Cost. Average length of stay for acute care inpatients for Q4 2017 is at 3.14 days with average case mix 

index at 1.37.  

 

We are unable to obtain data and information on our denial rate process at this time. The denial process 

is being brought up through the Utilization Management committee.  

 

PATIENT SAFETY 

The number of reports is remaining steady, which is good.  There were no new serious safety events in 

November reported.  Significant medication errors remain low, and new reporting intervals have been 

discussed with the P&T committee of the Medical Staff.  Falls rates are discussed below.  Safety events 

are being discussed daily (Monday-Friday) at a leadership huddle to facilitate reporting and resolution of 

errors.  A new report of occurrence report types was shared at the meeting.   

 

The Pain Task Force continues to meet monthly to improve pain assessment, treatment, and proper 

opioid prescription.  The committee is currently performing gap analyses using federal guidelines, as 

well as new Joint Commission standards to identify areas of most need. 

 

Patient Grievances data was shared with the committee.  “Appropriateness of Care” was the most 

common event type noted.   

 

PATIENT EXPERIENCE 

The ED CAHPs data profile reflects patient experience data collected from the ED population setting. 

This information is randomly sampled and surveyed via telephone by a third party vendor. This data 

does not affect our payment programs and is not publicly reported. The report provided is of the “key 

driver” questions. Our third party vendor has analyzed the data and provided the top 3 “key drivers” 

that are statistically show to “drive” the patient’s overall perceptions and overall quality of care. The 

dark blue bars in each graph represent the percentage of patients who answered the question with 

“excellent”. The black line is our “% Excellent Rank”, meaning our rank compared to other users of our 

third party vendor.  

 

Opportunities for improvement are identified in our overall quality of care, likelihood of recommending 

to friends/relatives, overall teamwork between doctors, nurses, and staff and instructions for care at 

home/discharge instructions.  

 

Overall opportunities for improvement exist in MHSC’s culture towards patient and family centeredness 

and enhancing the patient experience across all spectrums (hospital, clinic, and outpatient settings). The 

data is further broken out by individual department for reference. Clinic patient experience data will be 

shared next month, followed by Inpatient HCAHPS patient experience data. This data will rotate through 

each month from hospital, ED, and clinic.  

   

ACCREDITATION 

Page 110 of 164



Quality Committee Summary Report 
December 2017 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

The hospital finished their surveys and submissions.  We have been awarded full accreditation with a 

required follow-up survey.  This is the best outcome that we could have received given the course of 

events.  The follow-up survey window begins on March 1st.  It is unknown if this survey will be a full 

survey or only regarding the findings from the original survey.  Updated standards effective January 1st, 

2018 have been provided to the departments for preparation and proactive compliance. 

 

The Laboratory survey took place 12/5-12/7.  The Lab performed in an exemplary fashion, only receiving 

a small number of findings (9). The surveyor stated that the average number of findings is around 20, 

which we were well under.  The official report is not yet available.  When it becomes available, we will 

begin the process of responding to the findings as required. 

 

 

MERIT-BASED INCENTIVE PROGRAM (MIPS) 

For this month there is not much change for the overall MIPS score. We are still expecting to score 

around 90 out of 100 points which will qualify us for the additional positive incentive. We won’t have a 

final number until the dashboard gets updated with the fourth quarter data in the beginning of 2018.  

 

The final rule has been released for the 2018 MIPS reporting year and I wanted to highlight a few 

changes for next year. The minimum score to avoid a negative penalty has been raised from 3 points to 

15 points and the minimum score to qualify for an additional positive incentive will remain at 70 points. I 

fully expect to score above 70 points again next year. The Advancing Care Information (ACI) category will 

still be weighted at 25% of the final score and the Clinical Practice Improvement Activities (CPIA) will 

continue to be weighted at 15% of the final score. The Quality category will go from 60% of our final 

score to 50% and the Cost category will be added in and will count for 10% of the final score. We will not 

have to submit any data for the Cost category. Medicare will calculate our score based on the Medicare 

Spending Per Beneficiary (MSPB) and total per capita cost measures. The rest of the measures will 

continue to be submitted in the same way we are submitting for 2017.  

 

TIMELINESS OF CARE/ED THROUGHPUT 

Median time from ED arrival to ED departure for admitted patients is 265* minutes for the month of 

November. This data is not yet complete for the month and can still change based on additional cases 

that are loaded into the system on the 10th of every month, although changes are anticipated to be 

minimal. November shows an improvement from baseline by 110 minutes decreased in throughput 

time, although our data continues to fluctuate from month to month. The data trends are still within 

anticipated ranges per control chart. The goal is to see a consistent decreasing trend from baseline and 

to maintain ED throughput times below 300 minutes and continually work towards national averages of 

214 minutes and state averages of 176 minutes. ED teams continue to work on interventions. Addition 

of Ipads and ED wait time board for the public continue to be helpful per staff. Bedside shift report, 

triage in room as volume and acuity allow, and discussion of improved used of fast track are currently 

being worked on. Patient experience data dropped in August as a result of updating the comparison 

data benchmarks from 2016 to 2017. October data saw improvement and November patient experience 

data is not yet complete, with only 60% of surveys completed. This is an example of the continuously 

moving targets. As MHSC is improving, so are other hospitals. Our goal is to find ways to consistently 

exceed what other hospitals are doing and continuously evaluate the moving target.  

Page 111 of 164



Quality Committee Summary Report 
December 2017 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

 

Evaluation of the inpatient status has recently been added to the ED throughput data to monitor for 

unintended consequences of reducing throughput times that could potentially impact wrong initial 

status for admitted. We are currently in the process of evaluating how to best capture this information 

electronically within our systems.   

 

ANTIMICROBIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Antibiotic stewardship efforts continue in the organization’s goals to reduce the amount of antibiotics 

prescribed and evaluate necessity for antibiotics used. Much of the efforts currently reside in public 

awareness and importance of antibiotic stewardship along with physician understanding of importance. 

Limitations exist within data means of effective data collection and measurement to assess the impacts. 

Teams are continuously working and meeting to address these gaps and identify ways to obtain 

meaningful and actionable data and measurements that are electronically and easily obtained with our 

current data systems.  

 

FALLS 

The fall rate continues to decrease favorably.  The fall rate is currently the lowest it has been since 2012.  

New efforts to shore up the system will begin at the start of the New Year. 

 

 

  

Page 112 of 164



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   1/5/2018 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

December 20, 2017 

 
  

Present:  Holly Ellison, Melissa Anderson, Dr. Kristy Nielson, Renee Petty, Clayton Radakovich, 

Kathy Kisiel, Sarah Roth, Jodi Corley, Melissa Mansfield, Suzan Campbell, Taylor 

Jones, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Irene Richardson, Kari Quickenden, 

 

Absent/Excused:  Tracie Soller, Kerry Downs, Amanda Molski, Dr. David Liu, Dr. Christian Theodosis,  

 

Chair:   Taylor Jones   

 

Minutes 

November 15, 2017 Minutes were presented, motion to approve by Dr. Sowada, seconded by 

Mr. Radakovich. Motion carried. 

 

Quality Reports 

Mr. Radakovich reported in Ms. Molski’s absence. Mr. Radakovich asked for questions on the 

Safety & Quality Dashboard and reminded that a easier to read version will be upcoming. Ms. 

Roth reported no CAUTI for 3rd qtr., only one for the 2nd qtr.  

 

Dr. Sowada questioned the statistics on Core OP -18b HOP Mean Time ED Arrival to ED 

Departure, and what “is” the barrier to time. Ms. Anderson spoke to time for tests, putting in 

orders, transport communication issues as all being a piece to the time issue. It is a “cultural 

norm” to do the rule out tests before sending to floor as this may determine a transfer need. Dr. 

Sowada questioned whether with focus “could we and how long would it take to reduce that 

time?” Mr. Radakovich noted we have been working with the providers and placing orders and 

we would expect to see some changes and time improvement sooner. We are not telling the 

providers what to do; we are working with them to help them make the decision how to 

proceed.  

 

Mr. Radakovich stated our goals appear sustainable based on the current and consistent down 

trending in statistics. He also explained about a “Poster challenge” sponsored by the WHA, 

where statistics are shared and based on best statistics could be forwarded to the Western 

conferences to highlight our improvements. 

 

Dr. Sowada further questioned the HCAPS Overall Quality of Care statistics. The numbers are low 

in comparison to the % Excellent rate. Mr. Radakovich stated that the 2016 statistics were 

consistently in the “0” percentile, so coming of the line is definitely an improvement for 2017. Ms. 

Anderson noted that communication and how we present information and education is 

something we could work on. Dr. Sowada noted meeting the psychosocial needs is the mind set 

we need and training could be beneficial, it is not always just about fixing what is “broken”. Mr. 

Jones stated he felt training wasn’t need so much as reminding what we learned as children – 

“Be nice to people”. Mr. Jones also reiterated that he has complete confidence in our hospital 

care and intention to treat people well. Ms. Petty noted we need to work on our bedside 

rounding to be sure to introduce ourselves, ask questions, draw pictures and include the patient 

in the conversation, not “talk around” them. Ms. Petty also noted we are sometimes “shy” in 

introducing ourselves; we need to own it, introduce ourselves with confidence. We have come 

a long way in past 2 ½ years from the team discussing the patient in a room that did not include 

 

Page 113 of 164



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   1/5/2018 

the patient, to rounding a bedside. The momentum is there, we just need to continue to 

improve. 

 

Mr. Radakovich presented information (see attached) that we are being upgraded from a 2-

star rating to a 3-star rating. 

 

Strategic Priorities 

We ran out of time, no discussion: Patient Experience, MIPS, Timeliness of Care/ED Throughput, 

Antimicrobial Stewardship, and Falls. 

Old Business 

We ran out of time, no discussion culture Analysis, eCQM Reporting, and Future Rounding 

Plan/Value Briefs. 

 

New Business 

No new business was brought forth for discussion. 

 

Improvement Win 

Mr. Radakovich discussed his recent experience as a patient and how well everyone interacted 

with both him and his wife.  

 

Dr. Sowada brought in a “Cold and Flu” bag; perhaps this is something we as a facility could 

provide to patients, it could include hand wipes, mouth wash, chap stick, Tylenol, etc., items 

that could prevent a run to the store for parents/patients of flu, cold or RSV diagnosis’s. 

 
 

Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 

 

Next Meeting   Wednesday, January 17, 2018, 08:30 am, Classroom 1 & 2 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

Page 114 of 164



Page 115 of 164



Page 116 of 164



Page 117 of 164



Page 118 of 164



1 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Memorial Hospital of 
Sweetwater County, (hereinafter “Hospital”) and Rocky Mountain Oncology Center, LLC 
(hereinafter “Contractor”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Hospital operates an acute care general hospital located at 1200 College 
Drive, Rock Springs, Wyoming 82901 and is accredited by the Joint Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the Hospital provides various health care and medical services to the 
residents of Rock Springs, Sweetwater County, and surrounding communities (“the Community”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Hospital desires to engage Contractor to provide physicians to be 
available and on-call to provide professional medical oncology services for Hospital patients, 
including uninsured and indigent patients (“Services”); and 

WHEREAS, Contractor employs physicians (each a “Physician” and together, the 
“Physicians” who have the training, experience and qualifications necessary to provide the 
Services; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor shall provide Services in accordance with the provisions of the 
Agreement for as long as this Agreement remains in effect; and 

WHEREAS, Hospital and Contractor, as parties to this Agreement, wish to establish a 
relationship, as herein after described, to ensure their mutual success and define their respective 
rights and responsibilities each to the other. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual 
benefits, covenants, and agreements set forth below, the parties agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES 

1.1  Services. The Hospital hereby engages Contractor to provide Services, and 
Contractor accepts such engagement, as an independent contractor and not as the employee, agent, 
partner or joint venturer of the Hospital, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  
Contractor shall arrange for the Physicians to be on-call to provide medical oncology services to 
Hospital patients, including uninsured and indigent patients, as requested by the Hospital on a 
locum schedule.  As appropriate, Contractor shall arrange for the treatment of patients requiring 
medical oncology services within Hospital’s system unless  (a) the patient expresses a preference 
for a different provider; (b) the patient’s insurer determines the provider; or (c) Contractor believes 
that the referral is in the patient’s best medical interests. 

Page 119 of 164



2 
 

2. TERM 

2.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin November 9, 2017 (the “Effective 
Date”) and shall remain in full force and effect for a period of one (1) year.  This Agreement shall 
thereafter automatically renew for additional one (1) year terms, unless terminated by either party 
upon written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the anniversary date of the initial or any renewal 
term.  The word “Term” as used in this Agreement means the initial term and any renewal term.   

2.2 Termination Without Cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either party 
without cause by delivering a thirty (30) day written notice of termination to the other party. Should 
the agreement be terminated within the first year of the Term, the parties shall not enter into another 
agreement with the same or similar provisions until the end of the first year of the original term of 
the Agreement. 

2.3 Termination for Cause.  This Agreement may be immediately terminated by the 
Hospital at any time upon the occurrence of any of the following events listed in subsections (a) 
through (d) below, and by either party upon the occurrence of any of the events listed in subsections 
(e) or (f) below: 

a. Personal misconduct or any breach by Contractor or any Physician, actual 
or reasonably anticipated by the Hospital, of any provision of this Agreement which Contractor or 
such Physician fails to cure within thirty (30) days after written notice. 

b. Failure of Contractor or any Physician to comply with any of the 
requirements set forth in Section 4. 

c. Upon Contractor or any Physician being charged, indicted, or convicted of 
any crime punishable as a felony involving moral turpitude, immoral conduct or professional 
misconduct or negligence, including, but not limited to, fraud against federal or state government. 

d. Upon Contractor or Physician causing any Serious Reportable Event or 
Never Event as defined in Ardent Health Services’ Clinical Quality Program. 

e. Any change in state or federal laws or regulations, or the interpretation 
thereof, that adversely changes the duties or responsibilities of either party under this Agreement, 
unless the Hospital and Contractor agree on a mutually acceptable amendment to this Agreement. 

f. Upon closure of the Hospital for any reason. 
 

3. COMPENSATION 

3.1 Compensation. Hospital agrees to pay Contractor a daily rate of Two Thousand 
Dollars ($2,000.00).  Additionally, Hospital agrees to pay Contractor an Overtime Rate and On-
Call Rate of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($250.00) per hour for phone calls, emails, and text 
messages, and for non-clinic days, Hospital agrees to pay Contractor an On-Call rate of Four 
Hundred and Fifty Dollars ($450.00) per day.  The parties agree that the daily and hourly rates 
described in this paragraph represent fair market value for the Services in the region and 

Page 120 of 164



3 
 

Community. Such fees will be the sole source of compensation from the Hospital for Services 
provided by Contractor and each Physician under this Agreement.  However, Contractor may bill 
patients or their third-party payors directly for professional services provided by Contractor or any 
Physician to Hospital patients while on call under this Agreement.   

3.2 Travel Expense Reimbursement. The Contractor shall be reimbursed at Two 
Hundred and Twenty-One Dollars ($221.00) per hour for travel time spent traveling to and from 
the Hospital for purposes of the professional services provided by Contractor while under this 
agreement, within fifteen days of submission of reimbursement request via vouchers prescribed 
by the Hospital.  Hospital shall also provide Contractor with housing.  

3.3 Contemporaneous Time Logs. Contractor shall maintain a contemporaneous time 
log or time sheet in a form prescribed by the Hospital documenting the Services provided by the 
Contractor, and such documentation shall be provided to Hospital prior to payment by the Hospital.  

4. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1 Professional Standards.  Contractor and each Physician shall perform all duties 
under this Agreement in strict compliance with federal, state and local law, rules and regulations, 
including without limitation all laws relating to the practice of medicine in the state in which the 
Hospital is located (and all rules and regulations of the State’s medical board, the prevailing 
community standard of care in the community served by the Hospital, the bylaws of the medical 
staff of the Hospital (the “Medical Staff”), the policies, procedures, rules, and regulations of the 
Hospital, and applicable standards of the Hospital’s accreditation agency.   

4.2 License.  Each Physician is, and for the Term will remain, fully licensed to practice 
such Physician’s profession in the State of Wyoming, without restriction or subject to any 
disciplinary or corrective action. 
 

4.3 Participation in Federal Health Care Programs.  As of the Effective Date and 
throughout the Term, none of Contractor, any Physician, any of Contractor’s employees, owners 
and affiliates, or any individuals or entities subcontracted by Contractor or any Physician to render 
services in connection with this Agreement is an Ineligible Person.  As used herein, “Ineligible 
Person” means an individual or entity who (i) is currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or 
otherwise ineligible to participate in the Federal Health Care Programs or in federal procurement 
or non-procurement programs; or (ii) has been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the 
scope of 42 USC § 1320a-7(a) but has not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended or otherwise 
declared ineligible.  Contractor has screened, and will screen on at least an annual basis, Physician, 
all of Contractor’s employees, owners and affiliates, and any individuals or entities subcontracted 
by Contractor or any Physician to render services in connection with this Agreement against the 
Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General (the “OIG”) List of 
Excluded Individuals/Entities and the System for Award Management’s excluded parties data [see 
http://exclusions.oig.hhs.gov/ and http://sam.gov]. 

4.4 Narcotics License.  Each Physician has, and for the Term will maintain, all 
customary state and federal narcotics and controlled substances numbers and licenses, without 
restriction or subject to any disciplinary or corrective action. 

Page 121 of 164



4 
 

 
4.5 Medical Staff.  Each Physician is, and for the Term will remain, a member in good 

standing of the Medical Staff, with privileges to perform the Specialty services as required under 
this Agreement, pursuant to the Medical Staff bylaws in effect as of the date of this Agreement 
and as they may be modified from time to time. 

 
4.6 Insurance. Contractor shall procure and maintain in full force and effect during the 

term of this Agreement professional liability insurance covering Contractor against errors and 
omissions arising from the rendering or failure to render professional services by Provider or 
Provider Physicians pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall pay all premiums, costs and 
expenses associated with such liability insurance. At Hospital’s request, Contractor shall provide 
proof of such insurance within ten (10) days of such request.  

 
 

5. HOSPITAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

 5.1 Limits of Authority.  The Hospital retains all authority and control over the 
business, policies, operation and assets of the Hospital.  The Hospital may at any time restrict the 
authority of Contractor or any Physician if necessary for the successful operation of the Hospital.  
Each Physician shall follow all directions regarding the business administration of the Hospital 
given by the Hospital.  Contractor and each Physician shall retain responsibility for all medical 
care provided to Hospital patients by Contractor or Physician under this Agreement.  Nothing 
herein shall be construed as giving the Hospital control over, or the right to control, the professional 
judgment of, treatment by, or medical actions of any Physician with respect to professional 
services rendered by any Physician as it relates to medical/patient care decisions. 
 

5.2 Equipment and Staff.  Hospital shall provide office and clinical space and support 
staff required by Contractor to perform the Services under this Agreement.  

5.3 Billing.  Hospital shall perform billing and collection functions for all professional 
services provided by Contractor pursuant to this agreement.  All payments generated from 
professional services proved by Contractor will remain the property of the hospital.  Contractor 
acknowledges the Hospital has the right to endorse, cash, or deposit all payments for services 
rendered.  

6. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

6.1 Compliance with Law. The parties shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, 
rules, regulations, licenses, certificates, and authorization of any governmental body or authority 
in the performance or carrying out of its obligations under this Agreement. 

6.2 Independent Entities. This Agreement does not constitute the hiring of Contractor 
by Hospital as an employee. 

6.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared illegal or unenforceable 
the other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

Page 122 of 164



5 
 

6.4 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Wyoming with jurisdiction and venue in Sweetwater County, 
Wyoming. 

6.5 Third Party Beneficiary: Nothing in this Agreement shall give rise to any rights 
in any person not a party to this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be construed to create a third 
party relationship with any person or entity not a party to this Agreement. 

6.6 Change of Law. In the event that any federal or state legislative or regulatory 
authority adopts any law or regulations which (a) renders this Agreement illegal or prohibited by 
applicable law or regulations; (b) establishes a material adverse change in the method or amount 
of reimbursement or payment for services under this Agreement; or (c) imposes requirements 
which require a material adverse change in the manner of either party’s operations under this 
Agreement, then, upon the request of either party, the parties shall enter into good faith negotiations 
for the purpose of establishing such amendments or modifications as may be appropriate in order 
to accommodate the change in law or regulations while preserving the original intent of this 
Agreement to the greatest extent possible. If, after sixty (60) days of such good faith negotiations, 
the parties are unable to reach an agreement as to how this Agreement will continue, then either 
party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice. 

6.7 No Inducement to Refer. The parties enter into this Agreement with the intent of 
conducting their relationship in full compliance with applicable federal, state and local law, 
including the Medicare/Medicaid Anti-fraud and Abuse Amendments and federal and state 
physician self-referral laws.  Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any of the provisions 
herein, neither party will intentionally conduct itself under the terms of this Agreement in a manner 
to constitute a violation of these provisions. 

6.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the whole understanding of the 
parties and supersedes all prior oral or written representations and statements between the parties. 

6.9 Status of the Parties.  In performing the Services as contemplated hereunder, the 
Hospital and Contractor agree that each is acting as an independent contractor and not as the agent 
or employee of the other. Each party agrees to pay, as they become due, all federal and state income 
taxes, as well as other taxes, including self-employment taxes due and payable on the 
compensation earned by each party and each party agrees to indemnify and hold the other harmless 
from any and all taxes, penalties or interest which might arise by its failure to do so. This provision 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

6.10 Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Hospital, 
its officers, agents and employees from any loss, cost, damage, expense, attorney’s fees and 
liability by reason of personal injury, property damage or both, of whatsoever nature of kind, 
arising out of or as a result of the sole negligent act or negligent failure to act of the Contractor or 
any of its agents or employees; and Hospital agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Contactor, 
its officers, agents and employees from any loss, cost, damage, expense, attorney’s fees, and 
liability by reason of personal injury, property damage or both, of whatsoever nature of kind, 
arising out of or as a result of the sole negligent act or negligent failure to act of the Hospital. 

Page 123 of 164



6 
 

6.11 Notices. Notices or communications herein required or permitted shall be given to 
the respective parties by registered or certified mail, (said notice being deemed given as of the date 
of mailing) or by hand delivery at the following addresses unless either party shall otherwise 
designate its new address by written notice: 

CONTRACTOR HOSPITAL 

Regional Vice President Medical Staff Services Supervisor 
Eve Stahl Kerry Downs 
Rocky Mountain Oncology Center, LLC Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 
6501 East 2nd Street 1200 College Dr. 
Casper, WY 82609 Rock Springs, WY 82901 
  
6.12 Assignment. Assignments of this Agreement or the rights or obligations hereunder 

shall be invalid without the specific written consent of the other party herein, except that this 
Agreement may be assigned by the either party without the written approval of the other party to 
any successor entity or to a related or affiliated organization. 

6.13 Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all previous contracts or 
agreements between the parties with respect to the same subject matter and does constitute the 
entire Agreement between the parties hereto and the Hospital and Contractor shall neither be 
entitled to other benefits than those herein specifically enumerated. 

6.14 Waiver of Breach. The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any 
provision of the Agreement shall not operate as nor be constructed to be, a waiver of any 
subsequent breach hereof. 

6.15 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing 
signed by the parties hereto. 

6.16 Execution. This Agreement and any amendments thereto shall be executed in 
duplicate copies on behalf of the Hospital and Contractor by an authorized representative of each. 
Each duplicate copy shall be deemed an original, but both duplicate originals together constitute 
one and the same instrument. 

6.17 Access to Books and Records. If and to the extent required by Section 
1395x(v)(1)(I) of Title 42 of the United States Code, until the expiration of four (4) years after the 
termination of this Agreement, Contractor and Hospital shall make available, upon written request 
by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services, or upon request by the 
Comptroller General of the United States General Accounting Office, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, a copy of this Agreement and such books, documents and records as 
are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the costs of the services provided by Contractor 
under this Agreement. In the event Contractor carries out any of its duties under this Agreement 
through a subcontract with a related organization with a value or cost of $10,000 or more over a 
12-month period, such subcontract shall contain a provision requiring the related organization to 
make available until the expiration of four (4) years after the furnishing of such services pursuant 
to such subcontract upon written request to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health 

Page 124 of 164



7 
 

and Human Services, or upon request to the Comptroller General of the United States General 
Accounting Office, or any of their duly authorized representatives, a copy of such subcontract and 
such books, documents and records of such organization as are necessary to verify the nature and 
extent of such costs. 

6.18 Individually Identifiable Health Information.  Contractor shall comply with, and 
shall ensure that each Physician complies with, all applicable federal and state laws and regulations 
regarding the confidential and secure treatment of individually identifiable health information. 

 
6.19 Time of the Essence. The parties agree that time is of the essence throughout the 

term of this Agreement and any extension or renewal thereof, and of every provision hereof in 
which there is an element. No extension of time for performance of any obligations or acts shall 
be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligations or acts. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the Hospital and 

Contractor have executed this Agreement on the last date written hereunder. 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF 
SWEETWATER COUNTY  

  
   
  
  By: Irene Richardson 
  Title: CEO 
  Date:   
 
 

ROCKY MOUNTAIN ONCOLOGY 
CENTER, LLC 

   
             
  By:   
  Title:   
  Date:  
 
 
 
 
23801483.2 

Page 125 of 164



Page 126 of 164



Page 127 of 164



Page 128 of 164



Page 129 of 164



Page 130 of 164



Page 131 of 164



Page 132 of 164



Page 133 of 164



Page 134 of 164



Page 135 of 164



Page 136 of 164



Page 137 of 164



Page 138 of 164



Page 139 of 164



Page 140 of 164



Page 141 of 164



Page 142 of 164



Page 143 of 164



Page 144 of 164



Page 145 of 164



Page 146 of 164



Page 147 of 164



Page 148 of 164



Page 149 of 164



Page 150 of 164



Page 151 of 164



Page 152 of 164



Page 153 of 164



Page 154 of 164



Page 155 of 164



Page 156 of 164



Page 157 of 164



Page 158 of 164



Page 159 of 164



Page 160 of 164



Page 161 of 164



Page 162 of 164



Page 163 of 164



Page 164 of 164


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - wednesday - january 10, 2018 board of trustees regular meeting.pdf


